# Resettlement Plan

Stage of the document: Final Project number: 49026-003 June 2017

VIE: Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth in Nghe An, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh and Quang Tri Provinces Sector Project-Improving and Upgrading Tourism Route Connecting Dong Hoi City and Southern Areas of Quang Binh Province

Prepared by Planning and Investment Department of Quang Binh province for the Asian Development Bank.

### **CURRENCY EQUIVALENTS**

(as of 12 June 2017)

Currency unit – Viet Nam Dong (D)

D1.00 = \$0.000044 \$1.00 = D 22,680

### **ABBREVIATIONS**

ADB - Asian Development Bank

AH - Affected Household
AP - Affected Person

CARB - Compensation, Assistance and Resettlement Board

CPC - Commune Peoples, Committee

DARD - Department of Agriculture and Rural Development

DMS - Detailed Measurement Survey

DOF - Department of Finance

DONRE - Department of Natural Resources and Environment

DPC - District Peoples, Committee

DPI - Department of Planning and Investment

EA - Executing AgencyEM - Ethnic MinorityFS - Feasibility Study

GOV - Government of Vietnam

HH - Household

IMO Independent Monitoring Organization

IOL - Inventory of Losses

LIC - Loan Implementation Consultants

LURC - Land Use Rights Certificate

MOF - Ministry of Finance

MOLISA - Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Assistance

MONRE - Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment

MPI - Ministry of Planning and Investment

NTP - Notice to Proceed

PIB - Project Information Booklet
PPC - Provincial People Committee

PMU - Provincial Project Management Unit

RCS - Replacement Cost Study
SIA - Social Impact Assessment

VND - Vietnamese dong

#### **WEIGHTS AND MEASURES**

m (meter) – unit of length

m² (square meter) – a measure of area
m³ (cubic meter) – A measure of volume
kg (kilogram) – A measure of weight

#### **GLOSSARY**

Affected person (AP) / Affected household (AH)

- Means any person, household, firm or private institution who, on account of changes resulting from the Project, or any of its phases or subprojects, will have its (i) standard of living adversely affected; (ii) right, title or interest in any house, land (including residential, commercial, agricultural, forest, salt mining and/or grazing land), water resources or any other moveable or fixed assets acquired, possessed, restricted or otherwise adversely affected, in full or in part, permanently or temporarily; and/or (iii) business, occupation, place of work or residence or habitat adversely affected, with or without displacement.

In the case of affected household, it includes all members residing under one roof and operating as a single economic unit, who are adversely affected by a project or any of its components.

Compensation

- Means payment in cash or in kind to replace losses of land, housing, income and other assets caused by the Project. All compensation is based on the principle of replacement cost, which is the method of valuing assets to replace the loss at current market rates, plus any transaction costs such as administrative charges, taxes, registration and titling costs.

Cut-off date

 Means the date of land acquisition announcement made by local authorities. The APs will be informed of the cut-off date for each subproject component, and any people or assets that settle in the subproject area after the cut-off date will not be entitled to compensation and assistance under the subproject.

Ethnic minority

 People with a group status having a social or cultural identity distinct from that of the dominant or mainstream society.

Entitlement

 Refers to a range of measures comprising compensation, income restoration support, transfer assistance, income substitution, relocation support, etc. which are due to the APs, depending on the type and severity of their losses, to restore their economic and social base.

Host community

 Means communities receiving physically displaced persons of a project as resettlers.

Income restoration

- Re-establishing productive livelihood of the displaced persons to enable income generation equal to or, if possible, better than that earned by the displaced persons before the resettlement.

Income restoration program

 A program designed with various activities that aim to support affected persons to recover their income / livelihood to pre-project levels. The program is designed to address the specific needs of the affected persons based on the socioeconomic survey and consultations.

Inventory of Losses (IOL)

This is the process where all fixed assets (i.e., lands used for residence, commerce, agriculture, including ponds; dwelling units; stalls and shops; secondary structures, such as fences, tombs, wells; trees with commercial value; etc.) and sources of income and livelihood inside the Project area are identified, measured, their owners identified, their exact location pinpointed, and their replacement costs calculated. Additionally, the severity of impact to the affected assets and the severity of impact to the livelihood and productive capacity of APs will be determined.

Land acquisition

 Refers to the process whereby an individual, household, firm or private institution is compelled by a public agency to alienate all or part of the land it owns or possesses to the ownership and possession of that agency for public purposes in return for compensation at replacement costs.

Rehabilitation

 This refers to additional support provided to APs losing productive assets, incomes, employment or sources of living, to supplement payment of compensation for acquired assets, in order to achieve, at a minimum, full restoration of living standards and quality of life.

Relocation

This is the physical relocation of an AP from her/his pre-project place of residence and/or business.

Replacement cost

- The amount needed to replace an affected asset net of transaction costs such as administrative charges, taxes, registration and titling costs.

Replacement Cost Study -

This refers to the process involved in determining replacement costs of affected assets based on empirical data.

Resettlement

 All direct economic and social losses resulting from involuntary land acquisition and/or involuntary restrictions on land use or on access to legally designated parks and protected areas, together with the consequent compensatory and remedial measures.

**Natural Habitat** 

Land and water areas where the biological communities are formed largely by native plant and animal species, and where human activity has not essentially modified the area's primary ecological functions

Resettlement Plan (RP)

- This is a time-bound action plan with budget setting out compensation and resettlement strategies, objectives, entitlement, actions, responsibilities, monitoring and evaluation.

Severely affected households

 This refers to affected households who will (i) lose 10% or more of their total productive land and/or assets generating income, and/or (ii) have to relocate.

Stakeholders

- Individuals, groups, or institutions that have an interest or stake in the outcome of a project. The term also applies to those potentially affected by a project. Stakeholders include land users, country, regional and local governments, implementing agencies, project executing agencies, groups contracted to conduct project activities at various stages of the project, and other groups in the civil society which may have an interest in the project.

Vulnerable groups

- These are distinct groups of people who might suffer disproportionately or face the risk of being further marginalized by the effects of resettlement and specifically include: (i) single-female headed households with dependents, (ii) disabled household heads, (iii) households falling under the national poverty standard, (iv) children and the elderly households who are landless and with no other means of support; (v) ethnic minority households.

### Note:

(i) In this report, "\$" refers to US dollars.

The Resettlement and Ethnic minority Development Plan is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature.

In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, the Asian Development Bank does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

TABLE OF CONTENTS	6
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	1
I. SUBPROJECT DESCRIPTION	3
A. BACKGROUND	3
B. CIVIL WORKS TO BE UNDERTAKEN	
C. MITIGATION MEASURES D. OBJECTIVE OF RESETTLEMENT PLAN	7
II. PROJECT IMPACTS	
A. SURVEY PROCESS	
B. PERMANENT IMPACTS	
C. TEMPORARY IMPACTS	
D. TENURE STATUS	
E. VULNERABLE HOUSEHOLDS AND ETHNIC MINORITY HOUSEHOLDS	
III. GENERAL SOCIO-ECONOMIC PROFILE	
A. SOCIOECONOMIC CONDITION IN QUANG BINH PROVINCE	
A2. COMMUNES IN SUBPROJECT AREA PROFILE	14
B. INFORMATION ON AFFECTED HOUSEHOLDS	
C. SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT  D. MEASURES TAKEN TO MINIMIZE THE NEGATIVE IMPACTS	16
IV. INFORMATION DISSEMINATION, PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND PARTICIPATION  A. INFORMATION DISSEMINATION	
A. INFORMATION DISSEMINATIONB. PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND PARTICIPATION	
V. GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM	
A. ADB POLICIES	
B. NATIONAL LAWS ON INVOLUNTARY RESETTLEMENT	21
C. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT AND ADB POLICIES ON RESETTLEMENT.	
D. THE PROJECT'S POLICY	
VII. ENTITLEMENTS, ASSISTANCE AND BENEFITS	
A. ELIGIBILITIES B. COMPENSATION AND ASSISTANCE	
C. ENTITLEMENT MATRIX	
IV. INCOME RESTORATION PROGRAM	
VIII. INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENT	
A. PROVINCIAL LEVEL	
B. DISTRICT LEVEL	40
C. DISTRICT COMPENSATION, ASSISTANCE AND RESETTLEMENT BOARD (CARB	) . 41
D. DISTRICT ETHINC DEPARTMENTE. COMMUNE LEVEL	
IX. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE	
X. MONITORING AND EVALUATION	
A. COMMUNITY MONITORING	
B. INTERNAL MONITORING	
ANNEX I: COMMUNITY MINUTES AND LIST OF PARTICIPANTS	45
ANNEX II: SURVEY QUESTIONAIRE FOR AFFECTED HOUSEHOLDS	
ANNEX III: INVENTORY FORM OF PUBLIC STRUCTURES	80

# LIST OF TABLES

TABLE 2: IMPACTS ON LAND OF HOUSEHOLDS AND ORGANIZATIONS	9
TABLE 3: IMPACTS ON STRUCTURES OF HOUSEHOLDS	9
TABLE 4: SUMMARY OF IMPACTS ON LAND AND ASSETS	10
Table 5: Provincial Population (Quang Binh 2015)	11
TABLE 6: NUMBER OF POOR AND NEAR POOR HOUSEHOLDS OF QUANG BINH PROVINCE 2011- 2015	5 12
Table 7: Population in project districts/city 2015	12
TABLE 8: MAJOR ECONOMIC INDICATORS OF PROJECT AREA BY 2020	13
Table 9: Land Use in project districts, 2015	13
Table 10: Population and households of target communes, 2015	14
TABLE 11: INCIDENCE OF POVERTY IN TARGETED COMMUNES	14
Table 12: Share of sub- sector in commune's economy, 2015	15
TABLE 13: PARTICIPANTS IN FOCUS GROUP DISCUSSION	19
TABLE 14: RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT AND ADB POLICIES ON RESETTLEMENT ERR	≀OR!
BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.	
Table 15: Entittlement matrix Error! Bookmark not defin	NED.
TABLE 16: REPLACEMENT COST FOR LAND	36
TABLE 17: REPLACEMENT COST FOR STRUCTURES	37
TABLE 18: REPLACEMENT COST FOR TREES AND CROPS	37
TABLE 19: ESTIMATED COST FOR COMPENSATION	38
TABLE 20: RESETTLEMENT AND COMPENSATION PAYMENT PLAN	42

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

- 1. **Introduction:** The Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth in Nghe An, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh and Quang Tri Provinces Sector Project (Project) funded by the ADB is implemented in Nghe An, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh and Quang Tri. This report concerns the output one representative subproject in Quang Binh province "Construction of tourism road, connecting Dong Hoi city to the southern areas of Quang Binh province". The road is divided into three separated route sections, passing communes of Dong Hoi city, Quang Ninh district and Le Thuy district. The total length of the three route sections is 17.5km. These route sections include: (i) The route section No.1: Bao Ninh Hai Ninh section has a total length of 10.6km, connecting from the tourism center of Dong Hoi city, Bao Ninh commune to the center of Hai Ninh commune, Quang Ninh district; (ii) the route section No.2: An Son section, Le Thuy district has a total length of 3.2km, connecting from the center of Kien Giang town, passing An Thuy and Son Thuy communes to the East branch of Ho Chi Minh road; (iii) the route section No.3 connects from BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac sea, Le Thuy district with a total length of 3.7km and technical infrastructures of Tan Hai beach and Ngu Thuy Bac sea service area.
- 2. The tourism road connects Dong Hoi city to the southern areas of Quang Binh province has an important significance in connecting the tourism destinations and movement of goods and contributes to socio-economic development in localities. The investment in constructing the road will contribute to connecting famous tourist destinations of locality, facilitating convenient transportation for tourists to visit the spiritual places, resorts and historic sites in Dong Hoi city and Quang Binh province, contributing to an important process of economic restructuring of the province in the trend of travel services. In addition, the investment in construction of the road will facilitate people in exchange of goods with nearby areas, faciliate people in changing from doing agriculture and fishery to doing trade and service, reducing risk caused by natural disasters and drought. Moreover, it has been gradually improved and stabilized the lives of people.
- 3. **Scope of impacts:** Route sections under the tourism road connecting Dong Hoi city to the southern areas of Quang Binh province are constructed, improved and upgraded on the existing roadbed. Some route sections are newly constructed due to adjustment and realignment to be suitable for the terrian and to ensure technique of grade III-plain road in accordance with Standard TCVN 4054-2005. Thus, impact level caused by upgrading and improvement of the road is minor and insignificant. When the subproject is implemented, it will affect land, asset, tree and crop of 21 households with 89 persons in two communes of Hai Ninh, Quang Ninh district (seven households) and An Thuy, Le Thuy district (14 households). Out of the 21 affected households, there is no ethnic minority household and none of them is under vulnerable group (poor household, single women headed household with dependent, household with disable person...). The subproject does not cause adverse impact on household, losing 10% or more than 10% of their production landholding; no household who has house partially or entirely affected and has to relocate. In addition, the subproject affects land and asset of five organizations/enterprises, including CPCs of Bao Ninh, Hai Ninh, An Thuy, Son Thuy and Ngu Thuy Bac.
- 4. The subproject will acquire total 90,150m² of various types of land of households/organizations which include 1,070m² of residential land; 3,558m² of agriculture land for planting annual crop; 4,160m² of production forest land; and 81,362m² of protection forest land. In addition, the subproject also affects one tomb; 250m² of auxiliary works and structures of households/organizations such as: kitchen, roof, gate, fence, yard; 3,558m² of crop and 1006 trees of various kinds.
- 5. **Legal and policy framework:** The Resettlement Plan of the project has been prepared based on policies and laws of Vietnam Government, regulations of Quang Binh province and ADB's

- safeguard policy statement (SPS 2009) on Involuntary Resettlement (IR) and Indigenous Peoples (IP). The overall objective of these-above mentioned policies is to ensure that all people affected by the subproject shall (i) improve or at least restore their living standards to at least pre-Project levels; (ii) receive appropriate culturally socio-economic benefits; (iii) not be negatively affected by the subproject; and (iv) actively participate in projects that have impacts on them.
- 6. **Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM)**: To ensure that all APs' grievances and complaints on aspects of land acquisition, compensation and resettlement are addressed in a timely and satisfactory manner and APs can send their complaints in the most satisfactory and convenient way, a well-defined grievance redress mechanism is established in this RP. All APs can send any questions to implementation agencies about their rights in relation with entitlement of compensation, compensation policy, rates, land acquisition, resettlement, allowance and income restoration. Furthermore, APs will not be ordered to pay any fee during the grievance and complaints at any level of trial and court. Complaints will pass through 3 stages before they could be elevated to a court of law as a last solution.
- 7. Information disclosure, Community consultation and participation: Community consultation, information disclosure, discussion meetings at village level with APs and local officials have been carried out during the RP preparation. Full consultations with affected people have also been carried out during subproject preparation and RP preparation. Project policies, options for compensation, resettlement, and income restoration were discussed during the meetings. Concerns and proposals raised by the affected persons were elicited and incorporated into the RP. The grievance mechanism is designed and disclosed to people to ensure that APs' concerns and grievances are addressed and resolved in a timely, culturally appropriate and satisfactory manner. APs will be made fully aware of their rights verbally and in writing during consultation, survey, and at the time of compensation.
- 8. **Issues on Gender and EMs:** People living in the five subproject communes are all Kinh people and there is no ethnic minority group living in these communes. In addition, there are still remaining issues relating to gender in the subproject area such as position of women in their family and community and their limited participation in decision making process. Moreover, education level of women is lower than men. A gender action plan is prepared for this subproject to address concerns of women in order to improve their social status in the subproject area.
- 9. **Institutional Arrangements:** Quang Binh Provincial People's Committee as the Executing Agency will allocate a provincial budget and direct its departments and district authorities to implement land acquisition as scheduled. Department of Planning and Investment (DPI) as the project owner is responsible for overall management and coordination of project implementation. Provincial Project Management Unit (PMU) will be established under DPI as Implementing Agency to manage and implement the subproject and will ensure that compensation and assistance are administered according to the provisions of this RP. A Compensation, Assistance and Resettlement Board (CARB) with representatives from affected persons (AP), will be established to implement the RP.
- 10. **Implementation schedule:** This RP will be implemented before commencement of civil works. It is expected that land acquisition will be carried out during 2017 and 2018.
- 11. **Monitoring and evaluation:** The subproject is category B in resettlement and ethnic minorities therefore, it is not required external monitoring experts. During resettlement implementation, Quang Binh PMU will conduct internal monitoring and evaluation to ensure the implementation of the RP in compliance with ADB safeguard policy (SPS 2009) and prepare semi annual internal monitoring report to submit to ADB for review.

12. **Total resettlement cost**: The total cost for implementation of the RP, including management and contingency cost, is estimated to be VND **1,654,148,151** equivalent to USD **74,011.10**. The financing will be from Quang Binh province's budget counterpart funds.

### I. SUBPROJECT DESCRIPTION

# A. Background

- 13. The Asian Development Bank (ADB) is planning to fund the Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth in Nghe An, Ha Tinh, Quang Binh and Quang Tri Provinces Sector Project. Objective of the project is to use ODA loan to invest in poor provinces and sub regional economic zones to be a mean to connect and coordinate among provinces to promote economic development. The project is expected to improve the economic competitiveness of the North Central provinces in accordance with socio-economic development plan of the provinces. The Project will: (i) improve infrastructure for value chains; (ii) improve infrastructures for business development; and (iii) professionally manage the provincial infrastructure. It is consistent with ADB's Country Partnership Strategy (CPS) 2012–2015.
- 14. Quang Binh is one of the four North Central provinces under the Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth Sector Project in four North Central provinces with the representative subproject, namely: "Construction of tourism road, connecting Dong Hoi city to the southern areas of Quang Binh province". The route section is proposed to be upgraded to grade III-plain road in accordance with Standard TCVN 4054-2005. The road has a total length of 17.5km, including three separated route sections as follows:
- 15. The route section No.1: Bao Ninh Hai Ninh route section has a total length of 10.6km, connecting from the tourism center of Dong Hoi city, Bao Ninh commune to the center of Hai Ninh commune, Quang Ninh district. The starting point of the route section is from Km0 to road 60m under Bao Ninh commune and the ending point of the route section at Km10+600 in the center of Hai Ninh commune connects to the road running to tourism destinations, resorts, sport and entertaiment areas of FLC group. The route section is under provincial road 569, running along the sea, from Dong Hoi city to Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts, and locates on the same place with Vietnam coastal road with detailed planning approved in accordance with Decision 129/QĐ-TTg dated 18th January 2010 by Prime Minister. On the both sides of the route section, there are mainly casuarina trees and weeds. The ending section of the route with a length of 300m crosses Tan Dinh village where there is a high density population. Because it is the aggregate pavement, it is muddy in rainy season and dust in dry season which cannot meet the demand of serving the tourism purpose in the coastal area from Bao Ninh to Hai Ninh.



Figure 1: Map of Bao Ninh - Hai Ninh route section

16. Route section No.2: An – Son, Le Thuy district has a total length of 3.2km, connecting from the center of Kien Giang town, passing An Thuy and Son Thuy communes to the East branch of Ho Chi Minh road. The route section was constructed in the period of 1999-2000 with the width of pavement of 3.5m. Because of the high demand of transport and travelling and effect caused by nature, structure of roadbed and pavement and some structures on the route have been seriously downgraded which cannot meet the demand of travelling and circulating goods of people living in the region. About 2km of the starting section of the route (from Km0 to Km2) is concreted with the width of 3.5m; the remaining route section having length about 1.4km (from Km2 to Km3+400) is the aggregate road with the width of 3.5m÷4.0m. On the route section, there is one bridge with the width of 4m and length of span of L=12m being exploited, however, the bridge has been downgraded and will not ensure safety for heavy truck. In addition, there are two old large culverts on the route which are box culverts and structured by cast in situ place concrete with aperture of 2x (3mx3m) and 3x (3mx3m) and log brush slit to prevent salinization. Thus, it needs to have a suitable construction method for upgrading of the route section.



Figure 2: Map of An-Son route section

17. Route section No.3: connects from BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac sea, Le Thuy district with a total length of 3.7km and technical infrastructures of Tan Hai beach and Ngu Thuy Bac sea service area. The starting point of the route is at Km0, connecting to BOT road (NH 1 A has been invested in accordance with BOT method), and the ending point is at Km3+700 in Tan Hai beach, Ngu Thuy Bac commune. This is the main road, connecting coastal communes in the east of Le Thuy district to the BOT branch road, NH1A to the center of Kien Giang town. The route section is rural road on the existing earth roadbed which does not meet technical standards. Pavement is asphalted with the width of 3.5m and has been seriously downgraded. Because the road is designed with one lane, it is difficult for drivers to avoid opposite direction vehicles and will cause risk of traffic accident so that it does not meet the demand of travelling and circulating goods of people in the region. There is no bridge on the route section, only some small drainage culverts are existed on the route; therefore, it is proposed to be lengthened these culverts to be suitable for the aperture of expanded roadbed.



Figure 3: Map of the route section connecting BOT branch road to Ngu Thuy Bac

#### B. Civil works to be undertaken

18. According to preliminary design, route sections of Bao Ninh – Hai Ninh; An-Son; and route section connecting from BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac beach under the subproject of constructing tourism road, connecting Dong Hoi city to the southern areas of Quang Binh province are designed to grade III - plain road in accordance with standard TCVN 4054-2005 with main specifications as follows:

+ Width of roadbed: Broadbed= 9.0m
+ Width of pavement: Bpavement= 7.0m
+ Width of roadside: 2x1. 0m
+ Cross fall of pavement: 2%
+ Cross fall of earth roadside: 4%.

- 18. Route direction: The route central line is based on the existing roadbed. And it is constructed by reinforcement concrete for An- Son route section; asphalt concrete for Bao Ninh Hai Ninh route section and the route section connecting BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac beach, specifically: (i) Bao Ninh Hai Ninh route section basically runs on the old 569 road with some sections adjusted to ensure specifications of grade III plain road, specially the ending section is adjusted to pass adjacently residential area to avoid clearing house of people; (iii) the route section of An- Son, Le Thuy district and the route section connecting from BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac sea with central line completely run on the existing roadbed.
- 19. Structures on the route: According to the proposal of the province, it is newly constructed one bridge and lengthened two old irrigation culverts on the route section of An- Son, Le Thuy district, newly constructed two bridges passing two spillways on Bao Ninh Hai Ninh route section, specifically: (i) bridge on An Son route and two bridges on Bao Ninh Hai Ninh route: are designed with B=12m, width of 7m, span structure of 1x12m, concrete tensioned beam, length of span of L=12m; beam with box cross section; thin abutment made by reinforcement concrete is put on reincorcement concrete pile; (ii) on the route of An Son, Le Thuy district, there are two old culverts with structure of box culvert having aperture of 2x (3mx3m) and 3x (3mx3m) and log brush slit to prevent salinization. Currently, quality of the culverts are in good condition and it is proposed to be lengthened to be suitable for the aperture of pavement of the project.

# C. Mitigation measures

20. To minimize impacts of land acquisition and resettlement on the local people, the measures taken are as follows: improving the roads based on the existing alignments. Realignment will only be undertaken locally where the curves do not meet the design standard. Temporary use of land may be considered to avoid more loss for local people. The APs will be informed early about the land acquisition schedule so that they will not plant crops that cannot yet be harvested by the time the land is required for construction and also will not construct new houses and structures in the ROW. Positive and negative impacts during the subproject construction process have been determined such as noise and effect on traffic. However, when mitigation measures are applied, the negative impacts will be mitigated.

### D. Objective of Resettlement Plan

- 21. This RP ensures that the subproject will whreever possible (i) avoid involuntary resettlement; (ii) minimize involuntary resettlement by design solutions; (iii) improve or, at least, restore living conditions of people to their pre-project condition, and (iv) improve living condition of the poor and vulnerable groups.
- 22. This RP is the guiding document that identifies the key issues to address in reconciling the requirements of ADB's SPS (2009) on Involuntary Resettlement and Indigenous Peoples Policies with National and Provincial Government Policies. The concerns about involuntary resettlement and ethnic minority are included in this document. The RP includes the main issues as follows:
  - Policy and procedural guidelines for asset acquisition, compensation, resettlement, and strategies that will help ensure full restoration of the AH's livelihood and standard of living;
  - (ii) Identification of HHs and communities to be adversely affected by the subproject, what asset will be compensated and poverty reduction measures.
  - (iii) A plan on how AHs will be involved in the various stages of the Project, including resolution of grievances;
  - (iv) An estimate budget for RP implementation; and
  - (v) A monitoring mechanism on resettlement implementation for the subproject.
- 23. The RP is based on the subproject's basic design. The summary of the RP is included in the feasibility study to ensure the allocation of government counterpart funds for the subproject's implementation. The RP will be updated following detailed technical design approved by the PPC, DMS result and replacement cost survey.

# II. PROJECT IMPACTS

### A. Survey process

- 24. The social impact assessment (SIA) was conducted in the communes affected by the subproject. The SIA comprised of census and inventory of loss (IOL) for all AHs and socioeconomic survey (SES) of stakeholders within the subproject area. Additionally, a rapid replacement cost study (RCS) was also carried out.
- 25. An *Inventory of losses* was prepared for all affected households based on the preliminary design. Agricultural land to be acquired has been identified through referencing of commune cadastral records. Affected trees and crops have been determined by actual measurement and counting. The amounts indicated for area of land loss and affected trees/crops will be validated during the DMS that will be done when detailed technical design approved.

- 26. Socioeconomic survey: The SES was conducted by collecting socioeconomic information of affected households (including demographic characteristics of AHs, their income and livelihood, ethnic composition, education levels and on their concerns) through face to face interviews. The survey also collected statistical data from the Province, District and Communes and from the Provincial and District publications including the annual socioeconomic reports of communes.
- 27. Replacement cost study: The purpose of the RCS was to collect information on the market prices of land and non-land assets in the subproject area, in order to establish the required budget for compensation of APs at current market values. In future, during the detailed measurement survey, a replacement cost study will be carried out by an independently qualified and experienced appraiser to determine the unit prices for individual types of asset affected by subproject and submitted to PPC for approval. Such unit prices will be the basis for calculating compensation packages for AHs.

# B. Permanent impacts

28. **Impacts caused by the subproject on households/organizations:** The subproject will affect a total of 21 households (AH) in two communes of Hai Ninh and An Thuy (7 households in Hai Ninh and fourteen households in An Thuy). There is no household adversely affected by construction of the subproject who looses more than 10% of their productive land and no household who has house affected and relocated. Besides impact on households, the subproject also causes impacts on land and trees/crops of five agencies/organizations, including: An Thuy CPC, Son Thuy CPC, Dong Hoi protection forest management unit, Long Dai protection forest management unit and Nam Quang Binh protection forest management unit.

Insignificantly affected Affected households organization/agency organization/agency Name of affected Severely affected under vulnerable No. of affected households households1 households Commune Affected groups No. Dong Hoy protection forest 1 Bao Ninh 1 management unit Long Dai protection forest 2 Hai Ninh 7 7 1 management unit An Thuy CPC 3 An Thuy 14 14 1 4 Son Thuy 1 Son Thuy CPC Nam Quang Binh protection forest 5 Ngu Thuy Bac 1 management unit **Total** 21 21 0 0 5

Table 1: Impacts on households/organizations

Source: IOL in December 2016

29. **Impacts on land**: According to the IOL results, the subproject will permanently acquire totally 90,150m<sup>2</sup> of various kinds of land including 1,070m<sup>2</sup> of residential land of households (720m<sup>2</sup> of four households in Hai Ninh and 350m<sup>2</sup> of fourteen households in An Thuy); 3,558m<sup>2</sup> of agricultural land for annual crops under management of CPCs (2,536m<sup>2</sup> in An Thuy commune and 1,022m<sup>2</sup> in Son Thuy commune); 4,160m<sup>2</sup> of protection forest land of three households in Hai

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Insignificantly affected AHs loose under 10% of total productive land, one part of residential area without relocation or rebuilding of their houses on the remained land areas.

Ninh commune; 81,362m² of protection forest land (31,415m² under management of Dong Hoi protection forest management unit, 37,147m² under management of Long Dai protection forest management unit, 12,800m² under management of Nam Quang Binh protection forest management unit). The IOL results are presented in Table 2.

Table 2: Impacts on land of households and organizations

No.	District/commune	Total affected land area (m²)	Residential land (m²)	Annual crop land (m²)	Production forest land (m²)	Protection forest land (m²)
1	Bao Ninh	31,415	-	-	-	31,415
2	Hai Ninh	42,027	720	-	4,160	37,147
3	An Thuy	2,886	350	2,536	-	-
4	Son Thuy	1,022	-	1,022	-	-
5	Ngu Thuy Bac	12,800	-	-	-	12,800
	Total	90,150	1,070	3,558	4,160	81,362

Source: IOL in December 2016

30. **Impacts on houses and structures:** The subproject will affect 249m² of structures of 12 households in Son Thuy commune at route section of An – Son; one tomb of one household in Hai Ninh commune at route section of Bao Ninh – Hai Ninh. And the subproject does not affect house of household/organization. The survey result on impacts caused by the subproject on house and structure is presented in Table 3 below.

Table 3: Impacts on structures of households

No.	Areas	Kitchen separated from house (m²)	Shop separated from house (m²)	Tree/bush fence (m²)	Iron fence (m²)	Brick fence (m <sup>2</sup> )	Metal sheet roof covering (m²)	Concrete yard (m²)	End post (piece)	Tomb (piece)
1	Bao Ninh	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
2	Hai Ninh	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-	1
3	An Thuy	14	11	40	27	51	23	71	12	-
4	Son Thuy	-	-	-	-	-	_	-	-	-
5	Ngu Thuy Bac	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Total	14	11	40	27	51	23	71	12	1

Source: IOL in December 2016

- 31. **Impacts on trees/crops**: The subproject will affect 3,558m<sup>2</sup> of rice under management of An Thuy and Son Thuy CPCs. There are 1,006 affected trees of various kinds of households and organizations in five communes along the route, including timber trees, industrial trees and protection forest trees in which there are mainly casuarina trees and eucalyptus trees of organization and meliaceae tree, acacia tree and banana of households.
- 32. **Impacts on livelihood:** The subproject does not cause significant impact on agriculture production land of households and no household has house partially or entirely affected and no household has to relocate. All households are insignificantly affected (less than 10% of production land). Thus, the subproject does not cause adverse impact on income and livelihood of households.
- 33. **Impact on natural environment and culture of community**: The subproject will not affect to the natural environment, livelihood system, cultural practice and ancestral domains, temples and

pagodas, spiritual belief areas of people living in the project area in general and of the community in particular. The Table 4 below summarizes permanent impacts caused by the subproject.

Table 4: Summary of impacts on land and assets

No.	Types of impact	Unit	Quantity
	Affected land	m²	90,150
	Residential land	m <sup>2</sup>	1,070
I	Agriculture land for annual crop	m <sup>2</sup>	3,558
	Production forest land	m <sup>2</sup>	4,160
	Protection forest land	m <sup>2</sup>	81,362
	Works/structures		
	Kitchen outside house	m <sup>2</sup>	14
	Shop outside house	m²	11
11	Bush fence	m²	40
	Iron fence	post	27
II	Brick fence	m <sup>2</sup>	51
	Concrete yard	m²	71
	End post	piece	12
	Tomb	piece	1
	Galvanized metal sheet roof covering	m <sup>2</sup>	23
Ш	Crop (rice)	m²	3,558
	Tree	Tree	1,006
	Casuarina	tree	780
IV	Eucalyptus	tree	152
IV	Acacia	tree	26
	Ficus microcarpa	tree	2
	Meliaceae	tree	9
	Beetle palm		4
	Banana	tree	26
	Barringtonia acutangula	tree	2
	Other	tree	5

Source: IOL in December 2016

# C. Temporary impacts

34. The subproject may cause temporary impacts during construction on AHs whose land will be used for the contractor's temporary yard or temporary roads. However, to ensure that the temporary impacts are minimized, if not avoided entirely, the civil works contract will include the following provisions, (i) contractor to pay rent for any land required for construction work based on negotiation with and concurrence of AHs; (ii) to the extent possible, only unused land will be used as construction work space; and (iii) temporarily used land will be restored or improved to its pre-project condition. With these mitigation measures, the remaining temporary impact is assessed to be insignificant.

#### D. Tenure status

35. Determination of effectiveness of Land Use Right Certificate conducted in affected communes shows that: by the time of inventory of losses, most of the households with affected land have been issued Land Use Right Certificate. There are 21 households and five organizations having land affected by the subproject in which 18 households have residential land affected; two organizations have annual crop land affected; three households have production forest land affected; three organizations have protection forest land affected. All of the households with affected land have been issued Land Use Right Certificate (accounting for 100%).

# E. Vulnerable households and ethnic minority households

36. Out of 21 subproject affected households, there is no household under vulnerable group and ethnic minority households in accordance with the project policy framework.

#### III. GENERAL SOCIO-ECONOMIC PROFILE

# A. Socioeconomic condition in Quang Binh province

- 37. Quang Binh is one of four main economic points in the North Costal Center of Vietnam, being at 16, 55-18, 05 degrees north latitude and 103, 37-107, 00 degrees east. Its north is contiguous with Ha Tinh province. Its south is adjacent to Quang Tri city. Its west is touching upon Laos and its east is bordering upon by East Sea. The province's east coastline is 116.04 km long and the western borderline with Laos is 201.81 km.
- 38. The provincial topography is narrow and sloping from the west to the east. The area is divided into specific geological zones: mountainous, hilly and midland, lowland, coastal sandy area. Quang Binh belongs to the monsoon-tropical zone. The climate is divided into two seasons. Rainy season lasts from September to March next year with annual average rainfall of 2,000-2,300mm. Heavy rains concentrate in September, October and November. Dry season lasts from April to August with annual average degree of 24°C-26°C.
- 39. Quang Binh is stretching on the important north south traffic lines such as National Route 1A, Ho Chi Minh Highway, North-South railway. In addition, the province has waterway (Hon La seaport and Gianh seaport and airway (Dong Hoi Airport). Quang Binh also owns the National Route 12, and provincial route No.20, No.16 running from West to East, through Cha Lo International Border Gate and some border gates with Laos.
- 40. The province has the natural area of 8,000 km² with 85% of the total area is mountains. The average population of the province was 872,935 people in 2015. About 80% population lives in rural area. Average population density of the province is 109 per square kilometer (km²); however there is a concentration of inhabitants in Dong Hoi city- Capital of the province- with the density of 749 people/ km² which is nearly 7 times compared to average density. Quang Binh comprises of one city (Dong Hoi), one town (Ba Don) and 6 districts.

Table 5: Provincial Population (Quang Binh 2015)

	<b>A</b>	<b>A</b>	Daniel attan	Ву	sex	By sub- region		
Administrative Unit	Area (Km2)	Average population	Population density	Male	Female	Urban	Rural	
TOTAL	8,000	872,925	109	436,907	436,018	170,943	701,982	
Dong Hoi City	156	116,903	749	58,313	58,590	79,218	37,685	
Ba Don Town	162	105,700	652	52,747	52,953	46,224	59,476	
Minh Hoa district	1,394	49,763	36	24,836	24,927	6,104	43,659	
Tuyen Hoa district	1,129	78,755	70	39,535	39,220	5,793	72,962	
Quang Trach district	448	105,997	237	52,585	53,412	0	105,997	
Bo Trach district	2,115	183,181	87	92,521	90,660	17,533	165,648	
Quang Ninh district	1,194	89,908	75	45,185	44,723	4,556	85,352	
Le Thuy district	1,402	142,718	102	71,185	71,533	11,515	131,203	

Source: Quang Binh Statistic Yearbook 2015

41. Quang Binh is home to over 20 ethnic minority groups. Among them, Kinh ethnic people cover the majority of Quang Binh population (about 97.4 %), Bru-Van Kieu (1.9%), Chut (0.7%). The rest accounts for 0.01% of province's population. Ethnic minorities are concentrated in two mountainous districts of Tuyen Hoa and Minh Hoa and some western communes of Bo Trach, Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts.

- 42. Table 3 shows the incidence of poverty of Quang Binh in recent years. They indicate that during period 2011- 2015, the province has made great strides in reducing its poor households from 52,416 in 2011 to 41,527 in 2015.
- 43. The reported poverty incidence of the province in 2016 based on the new multidimensional national poverty line for period 2016- 2020 is 14.42% compared to 9.8% of whole country. Main characteristics of poverty in Quang Binh included (i) Poverty persists in the remote mountainous area where most ethnic minority groups live and (ii) Poverty is more concentrated in ethnic minority groups.

Table 6: Number of poor and near poor households of Quang Binh province 2011- 2015

Administrative	20	11	2012		2013		2014		2015	
Unit	Poor	Near poor								
Whole province	52,416	32,529	44,056	34,292	38,031	37,828	31,796	40,848	23,298	41,527
Dong Hoi City	659	761	537	526	455	474	402	411	333	367
Ba Don Town									2,191	6,195
Minh Hoa district	7,283	1,895	6,374	2,851	5,048	4,191	4,372	5,807	3,507	6,445
Tuyen Hoa district	9,205	4,240	7,343	5,270	6,589	6,206	5,977	7,513	4,955	7,831
Quang Trach district	13,440	10,892	11,017	12,090	9,337	13,383	7,293	14,932	3,102	9,102
Bo Trach district	9,241	4,503	8,080	4,313	7,298	4,858	6,311	4,832	4,015	5,796
Quang Ninh district	5,435	5,061	4,765	4,761	4,179	4,325	3,439	3,677	2,272	2,940
Le Thuy district	7,153	5,177	5,940	4,481	5,125	4,391	4,002	3,676	2,923	2,851

Source: PPTA- consultants- Data collection from field visit in Quang Binh province

### A1. Subproject Area Profile

- 44. The Quang Binh representative subproject is a mix of tourism access with supporting tourism infrastructure. The subproject as proposed comprises of three sections in the southern coastal tourism zone. The 3 sections are (i) Section 01: Bao Ninh Hai Ninh road with total length of 10.6km connects from tourist center of Dong Hoi city to the center of Hai Ninh commune, Quang Ninh district; (ii) Section 02: An Son route, Le Thuy district with the length of 3,2km connecting the center of Kien Giang small town via An Thuy and Son Thuy communes to the eastern branch of Ho Chi Minh road and (iii) Section 03: The road from the BOT bypass to Ngu Thuy Bac sea, Le Thuy district with the length of 3.7km supporting the Tan Hai beach and Ngu Thuy Bac sea services area.
- 45. Average population in 2015 of three target districts/City was 439,439 persons in 95,995 households. Ethnic minority acounts for 2.2% of total households in these districts/city (see table 7).

Table 7: Population in project districts/city 2015

Indicators		Dong Hoi City	Quang Ninh district	Le Thuy district
Number of administrative units	commune/ ward/ township	16	15	28
Average population in 2015	person	116903	89908	142718
Number of household	Household	32528	24862	38605
Number of Ethnic minority household	Household	0	863	1313

Source: Statistic Yearbook of Dong Hoi city, Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts, 2015

46. According to Master Plan on Socio- Economic Development through 2020 of the sub-project districts and city, target of annual average economic growth rate for the period 2015- 2020 is about 13.5- 14%. Service sector become dominant sector in Dong Hoi city whereas agricultural sector still accounts for one third shares of economy in two districts of Quang Ninh and Le Thuy (see table 8).

Table 8: Major economic indicators of project area by 2020

Economic indicators	Dong Hoi City	Quang Ninh District	Le Thuy District
Economic growth rate period 2011- 2015 (%)	13-13.5	13-13.5	12-12.5
Economic growth rate period 2016- 2020 (%)	13.5- 14	13.5-14	13.5- 14
Economic shares (%)			
By 2015			
+ Agricultural sector	5.7	30	35
+ Industrial and construction sector	39.9	45	28
+ Service sector	54.4	25	37
By 2020			
+ Agricultural sector	3.3	27	29
+ Industrial and construction sector	42.5	48	32
+ Service sector	54.2	25	39
Income per capita (VND million/person- year)			
+ By 2015	67.5	26	26
+ By 2020	147	36	50.2

Source: Master Plan on socio- economic development of Dong Hoi city and Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts, 2015.

- 47. In 2016, growth rate of industrial sector is 10.8%; 4.01% and 12.2% in Dong Hoi city, Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts respectively. However, because of negative impacts of sea environmental disaster and flood, agricultural sector in Dong Hoi city reduces 9.2% and increase by 0.45% and 3.85% in Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts respectively. Income per capita 2016 of Dong Hoi City reached at USD 2,300 while Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts reached at VND 30 million (equivalent of USD 1,340).
- 48. Although agricultural sector accounts for 30.7% and 49.5% of economic shares in Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts respectively, about 65% labor forces are working in agriculture in these districts, it indicated the labor productivity is still low in the agricultural sector. Main agricultural crops in these districts include rice, maize, cassava, sweet potatoes, groundnut and cash crops such as sugarcane, tobacco and rubber.

Table 9: Land Use in project districts, 2015

Type of land		Dong Hoi City	Quang Ninh district	Le Thuy District
Total land area	ha	15,587.3	119,418.19	140,180.44
Agricultural Land	ha	9,967.2	109,205.20	127,516.90
Agricultural production land	ha	2,982.6	8,349.00	22,238.00
Land for annual crops	ha	1,548.1	7,716.60	16,002.00
Paddy land	ha	1,249.8	5,340.60	10,986.70
Land for other crops	ha	398.3	2,376.00	5,015.60

Type of land		Dong Hoi City	Quang Ninh district	Le Thuy District
Land for perennial plant	ha	1,434.5	632.40	6,236.30
Forestry land	ha	6,582.5	100,328.00	104,851.00
Aquaculture land	ha	396.4	471.90	356.70
Non- agricultural land	ha	5,095.1	6,929.60	9,763.58

Source: Dong Hoi City, Quang Ninh and Le Thuy Districts Statistic Yearbook, 2015

49. Agricultural land accounts for 63% and 90% of total land area in Dong Hoi City and Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts respectively, of which the agricultural land area available for plantation of annual crops and perennial plants is about 21 % in Dong Hoi City, and 7.5% in Quang Ninh district and 16.2% in Le Thuy district. Forest land occupies 42 %, 84% and 75% of total district land area in Dong Hoi city, Quang Ninh and Le Thuy districts respectively.

# A2. Communes in Subproject Area Profile

50. The proposed subproject serves the coastal tourism sector of Quang Binh. Besides, the connectivity provide by the roads will facilitate local trading with neighboring areas, with a growth in non-farm rural employment that supports the restructuring of agriculture with labor moving into trade and services, minimizing the risks caused by natural disasters, drought and sea environment incidents, stabilizing people's production as well as improving living standards for local people.

Table 10: Population and households of target communes, 2015

Name of	Number of	Рори	ılation	Numbe househ			sex regated
communes			Ethnic minority	As Overall	Ethnic minority	Male	Female
Bao Ninh	8	9837	0	2431	0	4923	4914
Hai Ninh	5	5842	0	1537	0	2902	2940
An Thuy	6	11592	0	2531	0	5912	5680
Son Thuy	10	8466	4	2044	1	4190	4276
NguThuy Bac	5	3947	0	1010	0	2017	1930
Total	34	39684	4	9553	1	19944	19740

Source: PPTA consultants- Data collection from field visits at sub- project area, 2016

51. The poverty incidence in the target communes. The data indicates poverty rate reduced in period 2011- 2015. In 2016 based on the new multidimensional national poverty line for period 2016- 2020, poverty rate is increased in all target communes.

**Table 11: Incidence of Poverty in Targeted Communes** 

Name of communes	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016
Bao Ninh	1.62	1.21	1.09	0.7	0.68	0.74
Hai Ninh	22	20.8	18.8	14.4	8.1	11.9
An Thuy	13.18	10.32	7.23	6.04	4.68	9.11
Son Thuy	13.6	12.2	10.1	5.45	4.3	12.5
Ngu Thuy Bac	19.78	17.93	16.64	14.8	11.43	11.09

Source: PPTA consultants- Data collection from field visits at sub- project area, 2016

52. Agriculture production is still predominant in these communes with range from 35% to 80% of total gross output of the commune. Fishery is one of main income sources in these communes.

Bao Son Name of communes Hai Ninh An Thuy **NguThuy Bac** Ninh Thuy Share in total commune economy Agricultural sector (%) 55 85 37.69 35.6 80 Of which: fishery (%) 50 23 60 na na Industrial sector (%) 30.05 45 62.31 20 15 Service sector (%) 34.35 Income per capita (VND 27.6 26.4 29.5 28.5 21.9 million/person- year)

Table 12: Share of sub-sector in commune's economy, 2015

Source: PPTA consultants- Data collection from field visits, December, 2016

- 53. Land use status: According to the statistics of communes in 2016, the subproject has caused impact on land of households and organizations in the territory of five communes. Determining the effectiveness of land use right certificate shows that by the time of socio-economic survey and IOL, most of the households have been issued land use right certificate.
- 54. Education: There are primary schools, secondary schools and kindergarten school in the subproject communes. High school is located in the centre of district or inter-commune points where pupils in the neaby communes are easy to access to the school.
- 55. Health: there is general hospital in Dong Hoi city, Quang Ninh district and Le Thuy district and health stations are located in communes. All of the subproject communes have health stations and doctors/nurses of the health stations go to villages to check health status for people. Most children in the province are vaccinated and people in the province are taken medical care and treatment of common diseases before being introduced to the district hospital or provincial hospital in case of serious illness.

### B. Information on affected households

- 56. A sample socio-economic survey has been carried out in December 2016 covering 100% of total AHs in five subproject affected communes. Consultations with local authority, mass organizations, AHs were carried out in all affected communes. Secondary data were also collected in all communes. Results of the socio-economic survey are summarized as follows.
- 57. **Demographic characteristics:** Among 21 affected households with the total of 94 people. In which, there is no significant gender difference with 192 men (49.6%) and 195 women (50.4%). The average size of household in subproject area is 4.5 people. This is also the average rate in the mountainous rural areas see Table 6.
- 58. The main agricultural activities in the sub-project area are cultivation and livestock and some households do fishing.
- 59. **Income**: Out of 21 AHs in the subproject area, there is no household under new poverty line of MOLISA. According to the survey, the monthly average income of households is VND 4,500,000 to VND 5,000,000/household/month (averagely VND 1,100,000 /person/month).
- 60. **House status**: Most of AHs own their private house. Households own grade 4 house with tiling roof accounts fo 56.7% which is the popular and typical structure in the subproject area. One floor house with flat roof accounts for 16.8%, stable house with two or more floors accounts for 23.5% and other types of house account for 3%.
- 61. **Domestic water supply and sanitation:** Most of surveyed HHs reported that they use the clean water supply sources from dug wells (93%) and drilled wells (7%). Regarding sanitation, around 67.5% of surveyed HHs have septic tanks, 23.5%% of surveyed HHs used separated

septic tanks, 9.0% of surveyed households used 2-compartment and semi-septic compartment toilets. No HHs reported that they don't have toilets.

- 62. **Energy:** The most commonly used power source for lighting is electricity from the national grid (100%). For cooking, the main types of fuel to be used are oil and gas (93%), coal (2%), electricity or biogas (5%).
- 63. **Language:** All people in the subproject area are Kinh people and all of them use National language in communication.
- 64. **Ethnic minorities**: In the subproject area, all Kinh people do not have ethnic minority households.

# C. Social impact assessment

- 65. **Potential negative project impacts**. A social impact assessment (SIA) has been conducted through socio-economic survey and Inventory of loss (IOL) and community consultation to identify both positive and negative impacts caused by the subproject, and measures of negative impact mitigation and enhancing subproject benefits to local people. Results of SIA show that land acquisition is insignificant so that it does not much impact on incomes and livelihoods of APs.
- 66. For use of local labor during the subproject implementation process: because the education level and qualification of ethnic minority labor in the subproject's area are limited, so workers from other regions will take job opportunities of local labor in the area. However, these workers may cause risks disease transmission to ethnic minority people, especially women such as sexually transmitted infections like HIV and also social evils like drugs.
- 67. The construction of the subproject may cause negative impacts on women. However, these impacts are not significant because a few of workers from outside and construction duration is short. Moreover, mitigation measures will be considered through the processes of design, compensation and resettlement. In addition, during the construction process, environmental pollution such as dust, construction waste and noise may affect people. The impacts can be mitigated through mitigation measures proposed through EMP.
- 68. **Expected Positive impacts**. The subproject will bring a lot of positive effects to local people. The expected positive impacts are as follows:
  - To Improve transportation conditions in project communes where the poor people live; improve accessibility to the markets, production locations, health centers and schools of local people; reduce living costs and improve potential for adding value to agricultural products;
  - (ii) To create new jobs/works for local people leading to improving income for them and/or vulnerable persons from the subproject;
  - (iii) To provide opportunities to improve the role of women and enhance their participation in community activities through gender action plan; and
  - (iv) To directly contribute to poverty alleviation in the subproject commune.

# D. Measures taken to minimize the negative impacts

69. In order to mitigate negative impacts on local peoples, at all stages of the project, the project staff will disseminate project information to and conduct consultations with people to ensure that they will get maximum benefit from the subproject outcomes in a culturally appropriate manner such as: mitigation of impacts on land acquisition, avoiding impacts on religious works of people in the locality. During the construction process, the contractor should use dust and noise mitigation measures and restore quality of road if construction vehicles cause damage to the road. The

contractor also needs to use measures of disseminating and preventing risks of sexually transmitted infection and discouraging or preventing social evils.

70. The subproject does not affect negatively livelihoods of ethnic minority people. Thus, it is not necessary to establish a livelihood restoration program. Affected ethnic minority households will benefit from resettlement activity in accordance with the resettlement policy and programs/policies of the province. Thus, implementation and management costs for acvitities of livelihood restoration are included in the resettlement implementation cost budget.

# IV. INFORMATION DISSEMINATION, PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND PARTICIPATION

### A. Information dissemination

- 71. In compliance with the ADB requirements, the PMU will assist the CARB in publicly disseminating the final RP as approved by the PPC and ADB. The subproject information booklet will be made available in the Vietnamese language and delivered to affected community.
- 72. APs are notified in advance of resettlement activities, including community meetings to disseminate subproject information about the scope of the subproject, work alignment plan, site clearance plan and construction plan. They are also involved in public meetings to discuss (i) detailed measurement survey results; (ii) lists of eligible APs and their entitlements; (iii) compensation rates and amounts, (iv) payment of compensation and other assistance; and (v) the grievance redress mechanism.
- 73. This RP will be uploaded in ADB websites in both English and Vietnamese and disclosed to people through commune and village meetings. The staff of CPC and mass organizations will disseminate the information to community through loud speakers and other oral communication means in traditional market days as well as in public meetings.

# B. Public Consultation and Participation

- 74. Public consultations and community participation is encouraged in all the project cycle, including planning, designing, implementing, and monitoring. The objective of the Public Consultation and Participation is to develop and maintain avenues of communication between the Project and different stakeholders including APs to ensure that their views and concerns are incorporated into project preparation and implementation with the objectives of reducing or offsetting negative impacts and enhancing benefits from the Project. Feedback from consultations plays an important role in the planning process, leading to the formulation of mitigation measures and compensation plans for project-affected communities, and for environmental mitigation measures.
- 75. The aims of Public Consultation and Participation are to:
  - (i) provide full and impartial information to affected persons about the subproject, its activities, and potential impacts that affect them, and to provide an opportunity for their feedback on the subproject;
  - (ii) explore a range of options for minimizing subproject negative impacts, and for those impacts that cannot be avoided, explore the range of options for, and ensure APs participation in the design of mitigation measures;
  - (iii) gather information about the needs and priorities of APs as well as their feedback on proposed resettlement and compensation policies, options and activities;
  - (iv) obtain the cooperation, participation and feedback of APs on activities to be undertaken in resettlement planning and implementation, in particular on the location for resettlement, planning and design of housing (if necessary), land and

- community facilities, and the development and implementation of the livelihood program to affect livelihood restoration and development;
- (v) provide a mechanism for continued dialogue, raising of concerns and monitoring of implementation; and
- (vi) Exploring options for the co-management of natural resources through participatory approaches aimed at sustainable use and conservation.
- (vii) The method of consultation and participation has to ensure two-way exchange of information between the affected community and the project in accordance with the traditional culture of the locality, taking into account gender issues, social justice and the principle of equality.
- 76. Consultation and participation during the RP preparation. Five focus group discussions and consultation community consultation were conducted with local authorities, mass organizations, APs and non-APs in December 2016 and April 2017. The objective of the consultation meetings was to provide information, as much as possible, on the subproject to local authorities, mass organizations, APs and non-APs, and discuss and document their comments on subproject issues. Specifically, the following subjects were presented and discussed:
  - (i) subproject description: location, size and scope of impacts;
  - (ii) the subproject's implementation plan;
  - (iii) the Sub-Project's policies in terms of land acquisition, compensation and resettlement assistance as well as eligibility criteria;
  - (iv) the Sub-Project's grievance redress mechanism; and
  - (v) issues related to gender, restoration of incomes, livelihood and other support policies
- 77. Results from observations and consultation meetings with local authority, organizations and affected people are summarized as follows:
  - (i) affected and non-affected people support and agree with improvement and upgrading of the road;
  - (ii) during the meetings, the potential impacts of the subproject in terms of land acquisition were duly discussed with APs whose lands and assets will be affected; All agreed that the impact of subproject is marginal however all impacts on the assets should be compensated and assisted;
  - (iii) The APs agreed with the subproject's principle on compensation and resettlement assistance;
  - (iv) During the detailed design phase, it is necessary to consult with communal authority and local people;
  - It was noted that the environmental impacts of the subproject during construction are inevitable, but these can be minimized with the proposed mitigation measures in the EMP;
  - (vi) It is necessary to have proper construction method especially for the road section running through residential area, structures of households near the road, structures of CPC, school, bridge and culvert in the territory of communes. During the construction period, the traffic should be controlled so that the disturbances to transportation, production and business of local people as well as enterprises will be avoided.

- (vii) Before civil work commencement, it is necessary to check the condition of houses close to the road to avoid the dispute on the cracking of the house;
- (viii) It was proposed that meaningful consultation with and participation of women in the process of RP implementation, management and monitoring will be continuously undertaken in next steps;
- (ix) APs proposed that the compensation payment should be paid at one time and before the start of construction. The APs also mentioned that the issues on the quality of the subproject should be considered and that they are willing to be representative in the Community Monitoring Board during subproject construction;
- (x) Complaints of APs should be resolved timely and successfully.

Table 13: Participants of public consultation meetings

No.	Communes	Location	Participants	Number of participants	Number of ethnic minority participants	Number of participati ng women
1	Bao Ninh	CPC	Representatives of CPC, union, affected HHs	9	0	2
2	Hai Ninh	CPC	Representatives of CPC, union, affected HHs	19	0	4
3	An Thuy	CPC	Representatives of CPC, union, affected HHs	23	0	3
4	Son Thuy	CPC	Representatives of CPC, union, affected HHs	7	0	2
5	Ngu Thuy Bac	CPC	Representatives of CPC, union, affected HHs	9	0	1

- 78. Consultation and participation during RP implementation. During the implementation phase, the PMU coordinates with compensation, assistance and resettlement board and Commune PC to disseminate subproject information using various media such as organizing seminars, presentations, and public meetings for which subproject APs and beneficiaries are invited. The PMU will deliver the Project Information Brochure (PIB) and other documents of the subproject to the APs.
- 79. Local people, especially affected persons have right to work for the subproject as specified in the Gender Action Plan and in this RP. All communities have rights to monitor not only the construction of the subproject but also the implementation of the RP (see part XI Monitoring and evaluation), and their representatives should be members of the Community Monitoring Board of the commune to monitor the implementation process. They can make grievance if they find any illegal actions or things they disagree as specified in Section V.

### V. GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM

80. In order to ensure that all APs' grievances and complaints on any aspect of land acquisition, compensation and resettlement are addressed in a timely and satisfactory manner, and that all possible avenues are available to APs to air their grievances, a well-defined grievance redress mechanism needs to be established. All APs can send any questions to implementation agencies about their rights in relation with entitlement of compensation, compensation policy, rates, land acquisition, resettlement, allowance and income restoration. Furthermore, APs will not be ordered to pay any fee from all administrative and legal fees that might be incurred in the resolution of grievance and complaints at any level of trial and court. Grievances redress mechanism of the project will be followed Law on complaint No. 02/2011/QH13 and regulation on grievance at

Government Decree 75/2012/NĐ-CP dated 20/11/2012. Complaints will pass through 3 stages before they could be elevated to a court of law as a last resort.

- 81. **First Stage, Commune People's Committee**: The aggrieved affected household can bring his/her complaint in writing or verbally to any member of the Commune People's Committee, either through the Village Chief or directly to the CPC. It is incumbent upon said member of CPC or the village chief to notify the CPC about the complaint. The CPC will meet personally with the aggrieved affected household and will have 30 days and maximum of 60 days following the lodging of the complaint, depending on complicated case or distance, to resolve it. The CPC secretariat is responsible for documenting and keeping file of all complaints that it handles.
- 82. **Second Stage, District People's Committee**: If after 30 days or 45 days (in remote area) the aggrieved affected household does not hear from the CPC, or if the affected household is not satisfied with the decision taken on his/her complaint, the affected household may bring the case, either in writing or verbal, to any member of the DPC. The DPC in turn will have 30 days or maximum of 70 days following the lodging of the complaint, depending on complicated case or remote area, to resolve the case. The DPC is responsible for documenting and keeping file of all complaints that it handles and will inform the DCARB of any determination made and the DCARB is responsible for supporting DPC to resolve AH's complaint. The DPC must ensure their decision is notified to the complainant.
- 83. **Third Stage, Provincial People's Committee**: If after 30 days or 45 days (in remote area) the aggrieved affected household does not hear from the DPC, or if the affected household is not satisfied with the decision taken on his/her complaint, the affected household may bring the case, either in writing, to any member of the PPC. The PPC has 30 days or maximum of 70 days, depending on complicated case or remote area, to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of all concerned. The PPC is responsible for documenting and keeping file of all complaints that reaches the same.
- 84. **Final Stage, the Court of Law Arbitrates**: If after 30 days following the lodging of the complaint with the PPC, the aggrieved affected household does not hear from the PPC, or if he/she is not satisfied with the decision taken on his/her complaint, the complainant can appeal again to the PPC. If the complainant is not satisfied with the second decision of the PPC, the case may be brought to a Court of law for adjudication. If the court rules in favour of the complainant, then PPC will have to increase the compensation at a level to be decided by the court. In case the court will rule in favour of PPC, then the complainant will receive compensation approved by PPC.
- 85. The grievance redress mechanism has been disclosed to APs during RP preparation and will be continuously disseminated to people during RP implementation.

# VI. LEGAL AND POLICY FRAMEWORK

86. The legal and policy framework for dealing with the resettlement impacts of the subproject is given based on relevant policies and laws of Viet Nam and the ADB's Involuntary Resettlement Policy (SPS 2009). In this section, the relevant policies and laws of Vietnam, including policies of Quang Binh Province, and policies of ADB are outlined, then if difference between these policies (of Vietnam and of ADB) exist, reconciliation is done to establish policies and principles to be applied under this subproject.

# A. ADB Policies

87. **Involuntary Resettlement**. The main objectives of ADB's Policy on Involuntary Resettlement is to avoid or minimize the adverse impacts on people, HHs, businesses and others in the implementation of development project. Where resettlement is not avoidable, the involuntary resettlement must be minimized by exploring project and design alternatives, and enhance or at

least restore the living standards of the affected persons to at least their pre-project levels. The SPS June 2009 also stresses on a new objective of improving the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups. The policy applies to full or partial, permanent or temporary physical and economic displacement resulting from (i) involuntary acquisition of land, or (ii) involuntary restrictions on land use or on access to legally designated parks and protected areas. Resettlement is considered involuntary when displaced individuals or communities do not have the right to refuse land acquisition those results in displacement.

- 88. Indigenous Peoples (IP)/Ethnic Minorities (EMs). The main objectives of ADB's IP safeguards policy under the SPS 2009² are to: (i) avoid adverse impacts of projects on the environment and affected persons, where possible; (ii) minimize, mitigate, and/or compensate for adverse project impacts on the environment and affected persons when avoidance is not possible; and (iii) assist in strengthening country safeguard systems and develop the capacity to manage environmental and social risks. The policy is triggered if a subproject directly or indirectly affects the dignity, human rights, livelihood systems, or culture of EMs or affects the territories or natural or cultural resources that EMs own, use, occupy, or claim as their ancestral domain. Should ADB projects affect EMs, a set of general policy requirements are observed to maintain, sustain, and preserve their cultural identities, practices, and habitats (SR-3 of SPS 2009). A set of special requirements are in place should projects be (i) within ancestral domains and lands and related natural resources, (ii) commercial development of cultural resources and knowledge of EMs; (iii) physical displacement from traditional or customary lands; and (iv) commercial development of natural resources within customary lands under use that would impact on livelihoods or cultural, ceremonial, or spiritual uses that define the identity and community of EMs.
- 89. All people living in the territory of the subproject communes are Kinh people. The subproject also does not cause effect on the identity, culture and life of people. Thus, RP will be established and REMDP is not required for the subproject.

### B. National Laws on Involuntary Resettlement

- 90. Compensation, Assistance and Resettlement. The Constitution of the Socialist Republic of Viet Nam (2013) confirms the right of citizens to own and protect the ownership of a house. In addition, the Government has enacted a number of laws, decrees and regulations that constitute the legal framework for land acquisition, compensation, assistance and resettlement. The principal documents include the Land Law No. 45/2013/QH13, dated 29/11/2013, providing Vietnam with a comprehensive land administration law; Decree No. 47/2014/ND-CP, dated 15/5/2014 on compensation, assistance, rehabilitation and resettlement in the event of land recovery by the State; Decree No. 44/2014/ND-CP, dated 15/5/2014 specifying the methods for land pricing and land price frameworks in the event of land recovery by the State and Decree No. 43/2014/ND-CP dated 15/5/2014 providing guidelines on implementation of the Land Law 2013 and Circular No. 37/2014/TT-BTNMT, dated 30 Jun 2014, guiding on implementation of Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, and Circular No. 36/2014/TT-BTNMT, dated 30 Jun 2014, guiding on implementation of Decree 44/2014/ND-CP.
- 91. Laws, decrees and decisions relevant to public disclosure of information include the Law on Land, No. 45/2013/QH13, Article 67, requiring disclosure of information to the DPs prior to recovery of agricultural and non-agricultural lands.
- 92. Decisions by Quang Binh PPC on land acquisition and resettlement include:

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009

- (i) Decision No. 36/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 22th December 2014 on promulgating unit price for types of land and classifying position of land in urban and commune in the period of 2015 2019.
- (ii) Decision No. 08/2015/QĐ-UBND dated 10<sup>th</sup> February 2015 by PPC on promulgating unit price for kinds of crop, assistance and compensation for aquaculture and movement of tomb when land is acquired by the State in Quang Binh province.
- (iii) Decision No. 01/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 23th January 2014 on unit price for houses and structures constructed on land when land is acquired by the State in Quang Binh province.
- (iv) Decision No. 22/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 09<sup>th</sup> September 2014 on compensation, assistance and resettlement when land is acquired by the State in Quang Binh province.

# C. Reconciliation of Government and ADB Policies on Resettlement

- 93. With the promulgation of the Land Law 2013, including Decree No.47/2014/ND-CP and Decree No.43/2014/ND-CP, Decree No.44/2014/ND-CP, the policies and practices of the national Government have become more consistent with ADB's Policy on Involuntary Resettlement (SPS 2009). However, there are still some significant gaps between the Government policies and the ADB's Policy on Involuntary Resettlement.
- 94. The following table provides a gap analysis of ADB's Policy (SPS 2009) and Government's policy on involuntary resettlement and ethnic minority, and measures for filling gaps applied for the subproject.

Table 54: Gap Analysis between Viet Nam Regulations and ADB SPS (2009) and project policy: Involuntary Resettlement and ethnic minority

Issue	ADB SPS requirement	Provision in Viet Nam Land law 2013, Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, 44/2014/ND- CP	Project Policy
Identification of severely impacted APs who lose productive land	more persons will be physically displaced from home or lose	APs losing at 30% or more of productive agriculture land are considered severely impacted and are entitled to livelihood restoration measures.  Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, Article 19, Item 3:	HHS to be deemed severely affected if they are to experience loss of 10% or more of productive assets and/or physical displacement
Meaningful consultations in planning and implementing resettlement programs	Carry out meaningful consultations with affected persons, host communities, and concerned nongovernment organizations. Inform all displaced persons of their entitlements and resettlement options. Ensure their participation in planning, implementation, and monitoring and evaluation of resettlement programs. Pay particular attention to the needs of vulnerable groups, especially those below the poverty line, the landless, the elderly, women and children, and Indigenous Peoples, and those without legal title to land, and ensure their participation in consultations. Establish a grievance redress mechanism to receive and facilitate resolution of the affected persons' concerns. Support the social and cultural institutions of displaced persons and their host population. Where involuntary resettlement impacts and risks are highly complex and sensitive, compensation and resettlement decisions should be preceded by a social preparation phase.  SPS Involuntary Resettlement Safeguards Policy Principle 2	Public consultation is required for the preparation of district land use plans (Land Law article 43).  Notification of between 90-180 to be given to affected land users (Land Law Article 67)  On approval of compensation arrangements, detailed information on arrangements to be provided to affected persons, and provision for involvement of the Fatherland Association to mediate in case of disagreements/grievances. (Land Law Article 69)	Conducting meaningful consultations with affected persons, mass organizations and civic organizations as part of REMDP preparation throughout project cycle.

Issue	ADB SPS requirement	Provision in Viet Nam Land law 2013, Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, 44/2014/ND- CP	Project Policy
Compensation (general)	Improve, or at least restore, the livelihoods of all displaced persons through (i) land-based resettlement strategies when affected livelihoods are land based where possible or cash compensation at replacement value for land when the loss of land does not undermine livelihoods, (ii) prompt replacement of assets with access to assets of equal or higher value, (iii) prompt compensation at full replacement cost for assets that cannot be restored, and (iv) additional revenues and services through benefit sharing schemes where possible.  SPS Involuntary Resettlement Safeguards Policy Principle 3	Provision for cash at or replacement land of the same land use purpose (Land Law Article 74).  Provision for valuation by licensed valuers (Land Law Articles 114 to 116 and Decree 44/2014/ND-CP).  Provision with compensation for cost moving (Land Law Article 91).  Provision of interest for compensation in case of late payment (Land Law Article 93).	Land and non land assets will be compensated at replacement costs. APs are to be consulted in determining arrangements whereby they receive relocation assistance, secured tenure to relocated land, with comparable access to production and employment opportunities, and civic infrastructure and community services as required, transitional support and development assistance such as land development, credit facilities, training or employment opportunities.
Determination of compensation rates for houses and structures	The rate of compensation for acquired housing, land and other assets will be calculated at full replacement costs with no deduction of salvageable materials. The calculation of full replacement cost will be based on the following elements: (i) fair market value; (ii) transaction costs; (iii) interest accrued, (iv) transitional and restoration costs; and (v) other applicable payments  SPS Appendix 2: Safeguard Requirements for Involuntary Resettlement	Houses/structures used for living purpose will be compensated at replacement cost.  (Land Law 2013, Article 89, item 1)  Houses/structures used for other purposes will be compensated equal to the remaining value of the affected house plus some percentage of current value but total compensation amount is not exceed value of the new house/structure. (Decree 47, article 9)	Full compensation at replacement cost to be paid for all structures. No deductions for salvageable materials or depreciation to be made.

Issue	ADB SPS requirement	Provision in Viet Nam Land law 2013, Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, 44/2014/ND- CP	Project Policy
Transparency, consistency and equitability in negotiated settlements		No regulation	Rents and conditions for temporary use of land or assets will be negotiated with land users. Restoration will be to equal or better condition.
Provisions for APs who do not have LURCs	,	For displaced households who are not eligible for compensation with residential land, but have no other place to live in project commune, provision is made for the State to sell, lease, provide rent-to-own houses or to allocate land with levy collection (Land Law Article 79).  The Land Law (Article 92) permits recovery of land without compensation for lost assets in some cases.	All affected persons to be entitled to compensation in line with ADB policy and government policy depending whichever is higher.
Prepare Resettlement Plan	Prepare a resettlement plan elaborating on displaced persons' entitlements, the income and livelihood restoration strategy, institutional arrangements, monitoring and reporting framework, budget, and time-bound implementation schedule.  SPS Involuntary Resettlement Safeguards Policy Principle 8	Requirement for preparation of plans for compensation, support and resettlement. (Land Law Article 67) according to prescribed procedures (Article 69). Contents of plans provided in Decree No. 47/2014/NĐ-CP, Article 28.	REMDPs to be prepared for each subproject

Issue	ADB SPS requirement	Provision in Viet Nam Land law 2013, Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, 44/2014/ND- CP	Project Policy
Disclosure of draft resettlement plan	σ το	Full disclosure of detailed arrangements and compensation plans to affected persons. (Land Law Article 69)	Disclose draft REMDPs for each subproject, including documentation of the consultation process in a timely manner, before project appraisal, in an accessible place and a form and language(s) understandable to affected persons and other stakeholders. Disclose the final RP and its updates to affected persons, and other stakeholders.
Ethnic Minorities			
Action planning	Prepare an EM Development Plan (EMDP) that is based on the social impact assessment and meaningful consultation with the assistance of qualified and experienced experts and that draw on indigenous knowledge and participation by the affected EM communities.	No provision of the government on preparation of EMDP	The EMDP shall be prepared and updated, implemented and monitored.
Recognition of customary rights	Prepare an action plan for legal recognition of customary rights to lands and territories or ancestral domains when the project involves (i) activities that are contingent on establishing legally recognized rights to lands and territories that EMs have traditionally owned or customarily used or occupied, or (ii) involuntary acquisition of such lands.	The issues of customary rights or ancestral domains have not been fully recognized through LURC.	Full consultation with local EMs will be made to define areas with customary rights and to reflect the issues in an updated EMDP with particular actions to protect or compensate the areas.

Issue	ADB SPS requirement	Provision in Viet Nam Land law 2013, Decree 47/2014/ND-CP, 44/2014/ND- CP	Project Policy
consultation	The borrower is required to engage an independent third party to document the negotiation and settlement processes to openly address the risks of asymmetry of information and bargaining power of the parties involved in such transactions.	,	In case of land donations involving marginal portions of land, the third party consultant will witness the negotiation and Settlement processes as part of the due diligence report. A voluntary donation form signed by the landowners, witnesses and village leaders will be attached in the report.
Monitoring	Monitoring indicators specified for internal and external monitoring and reporting. In case of significant or sensitive impacts, an external monitoring organization is required to conduct monitoring on RP and EMDP implementation		The IA must undertake internal monitoring according to the critical indicators. Anticipated negative impacts of the project are minor, it is no need to recruit an external monitoring organization.

# D. The project's policy

- 95. In pursuit of the above resettlement objectives, the following specific principles are adopted:
  - (i) Poor and vulnerable non-titled land users will be provided appropriate assistance to help them improve their socioeconomic status. The type of assistance will be identified during RP preparation as per consultation with APs.
  - (ii) Payment for affected lands and assets upon lands will be
  - (i) Temporarily affected land will be restored to based on the principle of replacement cost.pre-Project conditions.
  - (ii) RCS shall be carried by an experienced valuing unit to identify the market rates and replacement costs for the affected lands and assets upon lands.
  - (iii) Assistance on life and production stabilization will be provided to those who lose 10% or more of their productive income generating assets and/or being physically displaced. The subproject will focus on strategies to avoid further impoverishment and create new opportunities to improve status of the poor and vulnerable persons and will be entitled to participate in an income restoration program, which will be mainstreamed in the District Extension Program.
  - (iv) Assistance shall be provided in accordance with the current Provincial regulations for those below the official poverty line, and for vulnerable groups (e.g. femaleheaded HHs, elderly headed HHs etc.) as per consultation results.
  - (iii) Social impacts assessment will be conducted and updated open to use of similar methods to assess potential project impacts, both positive and adverse impact on affected community.
  - (iv) The issues of access restriction and physical displacement from protected areas and natural resources will be avoided as much as possible.
  - (v) The RP shall be updated and consultants will be recruited to assist the RP updating, implementation and monitoring.
  - (vi) Key information in the RP, including result of DMS, detailed asset valuation, compensation and resettlement options, detailed entitlements and special provisions, grievance procedures, timing of payments and displacement schedule will be disclosed to the APs in an understandable format and in the local language, such as the posting of the full RP in commune offices and the distribution of project information booklets (PIBs) to the APs.
  - (vii) Meaningful consultation with affected community will be made to define areas with customary rights and to reflect the issues in an updated RP with particular actions to protect or compensate the areas.
  - (viii) Internal monitors of RP implementation will be carried out.
  - (ix) Civil works will not be issued a notice to proceed (NTP) for any subproject or project component that entails involuntary resettlement in accordance with the approved RP for that subproject or component until (I) compensation payment and relocation to new sites have been satisfactorily completed for that area.

# VII. ENTITLEMENTS, ASSISTANCE AND BENEFITS

### A. Eligibilities

96. Legal rights to the land concerned determine eligibility for compensation with regard to land. There are three types of APs: i) persons with Land Use Rights Certificates (LURCs) to land lost in

entirety or partially, ii) persons who lose land they occupy, do not currently possess a LURC but have a claim that is recognized or recognizable under national laws, or, iii) persons who lose land they occupy in its entirety or partially who do not have any recognizable claim to that land. APs included under i) and ii) above shall be compensated for the affected land and assets upon land. APs included under iii) shall not be compensated for the affected land, but for the affected assets upon land and are entitled to assistance if they have to relocate.

- 97. All APs who satisfy the cut-off date for eligibility are entitled to compensation for their affected assets (land, structures, trees and crops), and rehabilitation measures sufficient to assist them to improve or at least maintain their pre-project living standards, income-earning capacity and production levels.
- 98. Non-eligible APs including those making claims based on subsequent occupation after the cut-off date. The cut-off date for eligibility will coincide with the day of announcement of the land acquisition within subproject areas as declared and published broadly by the District People Committee.

### B. Compensation and assistance

- 99. The compensation unit price for land, structures and trees and crops applied for resettlement cost estimate of this RP is based on the compensation unit price for land (land prices for the period 2015 2019), structures and trees and crops issued by Quang Binh provincial People's Committee in recent years. A rapid replacement cost assessment has been undertaken via consultation with local authorities and local people to verify the current unit prices of the PPC for land and other assets. Results of the assessment indicate that the current prices for land, houses and structures and crops and trees issued by Quang Binh provincial People's Committee for compensation are acceptable. The compensation prices for lands and non-land assets will be updated at time of resettlement implementation based on results of replacement cost survey conducted by an independent qualified and experienced evaluator.
- 100. **Compensation for land:** The compensation unit prices for land at the time of preparing the RP follow the unit prices for lands stipulated in Decision 36/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 22th December 2014 by Quang Binh Provincial People's Committee on promulgating unit price of types of land in the period 2015 2019. Compensation in cash for the acquired land is at replacement cost. Average compensation price: for production forest land is VND 8,000 (The price is proposed through the replacement cost survey at the time of conducting IOL). Total compensation cost for affected land is VND 33,280,000.
- 101. For Public agency land there is no compensation for the affected land but it will be provided assistance equivalent to 100% of compensation price for the affected land. Assistance in cash for the acquired land is at replacement cost. Total assistance cost for affected land under management of public agencies is VND 768,310,000.
- 102. Average compensation price for 1m<sup>2</sup> of residential land is VND 166,822. Total compensation cost for affected residential land is VND 178,5000,000.
- 103. **Compensation for structures:** The compensation unit price for structures and houses is stipulated in Decision No. 01/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 23th January 2014 on promulgating construction unit price of house and structure on land to be the base for determining compensation and assistance value when land is acquired by the State in 2016 in Quang Binh province. Total compensation cost for affected structures on land of 12 households is VND 139,393,000.
- 104. **Compensation for trees**: Decision No. 08/2015/QĐ-UBND dated 10<sup>th</sup> February 2015 by Quang Binh PPC on promulgating compensation unit price for crop, assistance for aquaculture and relocation of tomb when land is acquired by the State in Quang Binh province. Total compensation cost for affected trees of households is VND 14,270,000.

- 105. In addition, compensation, assistance and resettlement for the subproject will be based on Decision No. 22/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 09th September 2014 by Quang Binh PPC on promulgating compensation and assistance policy when land is acquired by the State in Quang Binh province. Total compensation for affected trees and crop of HHs is VND 46,178,000. Total compensation cost for affected trees and crop under management of Thanh Son CPC is VND 2,450,000.
- 106. **Assistance for life stabilization:** According to REMDF of the project, households who lost 10% or more than 10% of their agricultural land holding will receive an assistance for stabilizing their life. In this subproject, all of the 03 households have production land insignificantly affected (<10%). The compensation price in accordance with the replacement cost survey at the time of conducting IOL is VND 8,000/m2. Total compensation cost for affected crop is VND 28,464,000.
- 107. **Assistance for job changing/creation:** For the households who lost their agricultural land (annual/perennial crop land): Following the provincial policy, the cash assistance equivalent to five times the value of their affected land. Total assistance cost for occupational training/job creating for affected households is VND 93,254,000. According to policy of Quang Binh province, these households will be provided allowance equivalent to five times of land price. Total allowance amount for occupational training and job creation is VND166,400,000.
- 108. **Assistance for vulnerable households**: none of the subproject affected households is under vulnerable group.

### C. Entittlement matrix

109. Entitlement Matrix to be applied for this Sub-Project is presented in the Table 15 below.

**Unforeseen impacts:** If any person or household is affected during the subproject implementation process, a social impact assessment will be conducted and then necessary compensation and assistance will be applied for the household.

**Table 15: Entitlement Matrix<sup>3</sup>** 

Entitled Persons	Type & Level Of Impact	Compensation Policy	Implementation Issues
	TURAL LAND		
A.1. Permanent	y affected agricultural	land	
Owners with LURC, owners in process of acquiring	percent of total	Cash compensation at replacement cost at current market prices for affected portion; if the remaining land is not viable cash compensation at replacement cost for entire affected land parcel; and	AHs will be noticed about land acquisition at least 90 days before and fully receive the compensation at replacement cost before site clearing at least 01 (one) month.
LURC, owners eligible to acquire LURC	Total 4,160 m² of production forest land under the use right of three households is acquired by the subproject.	Compensation for standing crops at market price (if any); and job training/creation assistance equivalent to maximum of 5 times the value of acquired land value but not exceed quota of agricultural land allocation in locality.	Level of assistance for job training/creation, decided by PPC. Implemented by DRCs
Public organizations	Total 84,920 m² of various types of agriculture land under management of public agencies is affected by the subproject in which there is 3,558 m² of affected annual crop land and 81,362	<ul> <li>a/ No compensation for affected land but support equivalent with not exceeding</li> <li>100% of compensation value of the affected land; and</li> <li>b/ Cash compensation at current market prices for standing crops on the affected land, If any.</li> <li>Total 84,920 m² of various types of agriculture land under management of public agencies is affected by the subproject in which there is 3,558 m² of affected annual</li> </ul>	The compensation amount must be paid to account of affected commune and used for infrastructure improvement of the commune

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> In case there are categories of impacts and DPs that are identified during the preparation of the RP/REMDP that are not included in this matrix, appropriate entitlements/compensation will be included in the updated REMDPs and no provision in this matrix can be lowered in the preparation of RP/REMDP.

m<sup>2</sup> of protection forest land.

crop land and 81,362 m<sup>2</sup> of protection forest land. There is no compensation for the affected land but it will be provided assistance equivalent to 100% of compensation price for the affected land.

Assistance in cash for the acquired land is at replacement cost. Total assistance cost for affected land under management of public agencies is VND 768.310.000.

#### B. RESIDENTIAL AND/OR NON-AGRICULTURAL LAND

## B.1. Permanently Affected Residential and/or Non-Agricultural Land

Owners LURC, owners in process of acquiring eligible to acquire LURC

with Loss of residential and/or nonagricultural landholding without LURC, owners houses and structures built thereon.

> residential land under the use right of 18 households in An Thuy and Hai Ninh communes is acquired bγ the subproject.

As a priority, allocation of replacement land: (i) equal to area and same type of affected land up to a maximum of land quota in province of project at a location satisfactory to DP; (ii) with full title in the names of both the household head and his/her spouse:

and (iii) without charge for taxes, registration and land Total 1,070 m<sup>2</sup> of transfer charges; or, if DP opts,

> Cash compensation at replacement cost for the affected land. The compensated area does not exceed the residential land quota in the locality; and

> Cash compensation for the area greater than land quota at replacement cost based on current market prices for agricultural land plus an allowance equal to 20 to 50% (as per provincial decision) of the average affected residential land value.

a/ The DRC will determine availability of replacement land and consult with APs

b/ If affected landholding is under dispute: Compensation is put in escrow account until land dispute is resolved.

Affected household should be informed three months before their land is acquired by the project.

Affected HHs will fully receive compensation and allowance by replacement cost prior to site clearance.

C. COMPENSAT	TION FOR AFFECTED H	IOUSE AND STRUCTURE	
C.1. Other Struc	tures, e.g., kitchens, to	pilets, animal sheds, fences, foundations, etc.	
Owners of structures	Partially or totally affected structures or other property  There are 12 end posts, 237m² of various types of structure and one tomb of 12 households affected by the subproject.	Cash compensation at full replacement cost with no deduction for depreciation or salvageable materials; OR In-kind assistance to relocate affected structures or property; OR Cash assistance to repair of property to original or better condition.	Owners of structures are entitled to compensation regardless of whether or not they possess a) land use rights to the land OR b) construction permits for the structures.  Costs for repairing the remaining house/structure should be negotiate with DP.
D. COMPENSAT	TION FOR AFFECTED O	CROPS AND TREES	
Owners of crops and/or trees	Loss of annual crops The subproject is expected to affect 3,558 m <sup>2</sup> of rice.	If standing crops are ripening and cannot be harvested, cash compensation of un- harvested crops at market values based on the average production over past 3 years.  No compensation for crops if harvested	A minimum of 3 months' notice to harvest crops; Owners of crops and/or trees are entitled to compensation regardless of whether they possess land use rights  Calculation of compensation for crop is based on the highest productivity of one crop during the last 3 years.
	Loss of perennial crops, fruit and timber trees and tree fences  Total number of 313 trees of various types is affected by the subproject.	Cash compensation at current market prices given the type, age and productive value of the affected crops and/or trees.	Compensation must equal in value to crops that would be harvested had acquisition not occurred.  Calculation of compensation for trees is based on the age and diameter of the tree.  APs have the right to use salvageable trees.
		ITATION AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE	
	Rehabilitation Assistan Job training/Creation		Eligibility will be confirmed during DMS.

nâna nahiân	allawanaa	and approved concurrently with plane for companyation	Level of assistance for job training/arcation
nông nghiệp	allowance  Total 4,160 m² of production land of three households (less than 10%) is acquired by the subproject (specified in Item A1).	and approved concurrently with plans for compensation, support and resettlement. Plan development to be undertaken by Provincial and District level People's Committees who shall organize consultations with, and give explanation and assimilate opinions from, people whose land is recovered <sup>4</sup> .  Cash assistance equal to maximum of 5 times of compensation value for affected land area but not exceed land quota in locality <sup>5</sup> .  If DP requests for training, he/she will be entitled to a free training course.  According to the policy of Quang Binh province: allowance for occupational training and job creation: allowance in cash equivalent to five times of agriculture land price for the entire acquired agriculture land in	,
		accordance with the provincial unit price table.  Total 4,160 m² of production land of three households (less than 10%) is acquired by the subproject (specified in Item A1).	
F. ASSISTANCE	FOR REMOVING TOMB		
	Removing tomb to	According to policy of Quang Binh province: an allowance of VND 5,000,000 will be provided to households self-removing their tomb to other place.	·

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Land Law (2013) Article 84
 <sup>5</sup> Decree 47/2014/ND-CP (Regulations on Compensation, Support and Resettlement upon Land Expropriation by the State) Article 20

#### III. RESETTLEMENT

110. In this stage, there is no affected household has to relocate. This section will be updated during the DMS and updating REMDP. Relocation options of households will be consulted in detailed and resettlement site will be arranged (if needed).

#### IV. INCOME RESTORATION PROGRAM

111. Out of 85 households on land, there are 36 households under vulnerable groups. During the DMS and updating the REMDP, impacts on land and identification of vulnerable groups shall be updated. Addition to compensation and cash allowances for them, vulnerable households will be participated in an income and livelihood restoration program (if needed) which shall be developed during project implementation based on results of a need assessment for income and livelihood restoration and accepted by the ADB before the civil work commencement

#### V. RESETTLEMENT BUDGET AND FINANCING PLAN

112. **Replacement cost**. A rapid replacement cost assessment has been undertaken via consultation with local authorities and local people to determine compensation unit price issued by the PPC and the results indicate that the current prices for houses and structures and crops and trees issued by Quang Binh provincial People's Committee for compensation are acceptable. The compensation prices for lands and non-land assets will be updated at time of resettlement implementation based on results of replacement cost survey conducted by an independent qualified and experienced evaluator. For this RP, the selected price for compensation will be calculated in accordance with the issued unit price. The market price of land and crops are presented in Table 16,17 and 18. All these prices will be used to estimate the cost of compensation and resettlement and shall be updated during RP implementation process.

Table 16: Replacement cost for land

No.	Items	Unit	Areas	Position	Unit price regulated by PPC (VND) <sup>6</sup>	Proposed replacement cost (VND)
ı	Dong Hoi city					
1	Bao Ninh commune					
			Dong	1	8,000	8,000
1.1	Protection forest land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	Bang commune	2	6,000	8,000
II	Quang Ninh district					
1	Hai Ninh commune					
1.1	Residential land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>		1	175,000	175,000
10	Drata ation forcet land	VND/m²	Dong	1	8,000	8,000
1.2	Protection forest land		Bang	2	6,000	8,000
1.3	Production forest land	VND/m²	commune	1	8,000	8,000
1.3	FIOUUCIIOII IOIESI IAIIU	VIND/III		2	6,000	8,000

<sup>6</sup> Decision No: 36/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 22th December 2014 by Quang Binh PCC

III	Le Thuy district					
1	Ngu Thuy Bac district		Dong			
1.1	Protection forest land	VND/m²	Bang commune	1	8,000	8,000
2	An Thuy commune		Dong			
2.1	Residential land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	Bang	1	150,000	150,000
2.2	Annual crop land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	commune	1	33,000	33,000
3	Son Thuy commune		Dong			
3.1	Annual crop land	VND/m²	Bang commune	1	33,000	33,000

**Table 17: Replacement cost for structures** 

No.	Items	Unit	Unit price regulated by PPC (VND) <sup>7</sup>	Adjustment coefficient	Unit price multiplied by coefficient (VND)	Proposed replacement cost (VND)
I	Le Thuy district					
1	Kitchen outside house	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	1,876,000	1	1,876,000	1,876,000
2	Shop outside house	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	2,031,000	1	2,031,000	2,031,000
3	Galvanized metal sheet roof covering	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	328,000	1	328,000	328,000
4	Concrete yard	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	154,000	1	154,000	154,000
5	Brick end post	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	1,294,000	1	1,294,000	1,294,000
6	Iron fence	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	116,000	1	116,000	116,000
7	Brick fence	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	550,000	1	550,000	550,000
II	<b>Quang Ninh district</b>	VND/m <sup>2</sup>		_		
8	Tomb	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	Basing on a	area, material a	and structure t	o value

Table 18: Replacement cost for trees and crops

No.	Trees	Unit	Unit price regulated by PPC (VND) <sup>8</sup>	Proposed replacement cost (VND)
1	Meliaceae (Φ 26-35cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	37,000	105,000
3	Centralized casuarina equisetifolia (Ф 16-20cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	16,800	16,800
4	Distributed casuarina equisetifolia (Φ 26-35cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	30,500	90,000
5	Distributed eucalyptus (Φ 26-35cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	30,500	90,000

 $<sup>^7</sup>$  Decision No.: 01/2014/QĐ-UBND dated 23th January 2014 by Quang Binh PPC  $^8$  Decision No.: 08/2015/QĐ-UBND dated 10th February 2015 by Quang Binh PPC

			Unit price	Proposed
No.	Trees	Unit	regulated by PPC	replacement
			(VND) <sup>8</sup>	cost (VND)
6	Centralized eucalyptus (Ф16-20cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	16,800	16,800
7	Distributed acacia (Φ 26-35cm)	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	30,500	90,000
8	Guava which can be harvested	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	249,000	249,000
9	Ficus microcarpa	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	61,000	150,000
10	Beetle palm is being harvested	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	150,000	150,000
11	Banana cannot be harvested	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	22,000	22,000
12	Banana is being harvested	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	100,000	100,000
13	Newly planted barringtonia	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	61,000	61,000
	acutangula		01,000	01,000
14	Barringtonia acutangula with the	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	415,000	415,000
	height of 2m, Φ>10cm		110,000	
15	Terminalia catappa with more than	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	153,000	153,000
13	four years old		133,000	133,000
16	Two seasons rice	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	8,000	8,000
17	Bush fence	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	15,000	15,000

- 113. **Budget for resettlement: The estimated** cost in accordance with the unit prices above, including compensation for land and asset on land, allowance, cost for maintenance and contingency is VND **1,654,148,151**, **equivalent to USD 74,011.10** (see Table 19).
- 114. The resettlement budget is funded by Quang Binh PPC, using the provincial budget and will be allocated sufficiently and on time based on the subproject resettlement implementation schedule.

Table 19: Estimated cost for compensation

No.	Items	Unit	Quantity	Unit price (average)	In cash (VND)
Α	Compensation for land				211,780,000
ı	Residential land				178,500,000
1	Quang Ninh		-	-	126,000,000
1.1	Hai Ninh commune		720	175,000	126,000,000
2	Le Thuy	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	-	-	52,500,000
2.1	An Thuy commune		350	150,000	52,500,000
٧	Production forest land				33,280,000
1	Quang Ninh		-	-	33,280,000
1.1	Hai Ninh commune	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	4.160	8,000	33,280,000
В	Compensation for tree and crop				14,270,000
1	Quang Ninh				3,192,000
1.1	Hai Ninh commune	VND/tree	190	16,800	3,192,000
2	Le Thuy				11,078,000
2.1	An Thuy commune	VND/tree	123	90,065	11,078,000
С	Compensation for structures				134,393,000
1	Quang Ninh				20,000,000
1.1	Hai Ninh commune	VND/tomb	1	20,000,000	20,000,000

No.	Items	Unit	Quantity	Unit price (average)	In cash (VND)
2	Le Thuy				114,393,000
2.1	An Thuy commune	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	249	459,410	114,393,000
D	Assistance				171,400,000
1	Quang Ninh				171,400,000
1.1	Hai Ninh commune				171,400,000
1.1.1	Assistance for occupational training, job changing and job creation	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	4.160	40,000	166,400,000
1.1.2	Assistance for relocation of tomb	VND/tomb	1	5,000,000	5,000,000
E	Public				808,416,400
1	Dong Hoi				255,604,000
1.1	Bao Ninh commune				255,604,000
1.1.1	Protection forest land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	31,415	8,000	251,,320,000
1.1.2	Tree	VND/tree	255	16,000	4,284,000
2	Quang Ninh				302,132,000
2.1	Hai Ninh commune				302,132,000
2.1.1	Protection forest land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	37,147	8,000	297,176,000
2.1.2	Tree	VND/tree	295	16,800	4,956,000
3	Le Thuy				250,680,400
3.1	Ngu Thuy Bac commune				104,802,400
3.1.1	Protection forest land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	12,800	8,000	102,400,000
3.1.2	Tree	VND/tree	143	16,800	2,402,400
3.2	An Thuy commune				103,976,000
3.2.1	Annual crop land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	2,536	33,000	83,688,000
3.2.2	Rice	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	2,536	8,000	20,288,000
3.3	Son Thuy commune				41,902,000
3.3.1	Annual crop land	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	1,022	33,000	33,726,000
3.3.1	Rice	VND/m <sup>2</sup>	1,022	8,000	8,176,000
F	Total (A++E)				1,340,259,400
G	Implementation cost of compensation + assistance + resettlement (2%)	%	2		26,805,188
Н	Total (F+G)				1,367,064,588
I	Contingency (10% of H)	%			136,706,458.80
K	Total (H+I)				1,503,771,047
L	VAT (10%)				150,377,105
M	Total (VND)				1,654,148,151
N	Total (USD)				74,011.10

## VIII. INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENT

### A. Provincial level

115. The Quang Binh Provincial People's Committee (PPC) with the role of Executing Agency, is responsible for implementation of resettlement activities within its administrative jurisdiction. The main responsibilities of PPC include:

- (i) To appraise and approve RP;
- (ii) To issue decisions on approving land valuations applied for compensation rates, allowances and other supports to APs, especially vulnerable groups, based on principles of RP;
  - (iii) To timely provide the budget for compensation, support and resettlement;
  - (iv) To directly supervise provincial relevant departments to implement effectively the RP.
- (v) To authorize the district-level People's Committees to approve compensation, assistance and resettlement plans;
- (vi) To direct the relevant agencies to settle APs' complaints, grievances related to compensation, assistance and resettlement according to their law-prescribed competence;
- (vii) To direct the relevant agencies to examine and handle the violations in the compensation, assistance and resettlement domain.
- 116. The Quang Binh Provincial Department of Planning and Investment (DPI) authorized by Quang Binh PPC as Project Owner, is responsible:
  - (i) To manage the project loan allocated for subprojects in Quang Binh province;
  - (ii) To establish Provincial Project Management Unit (PMU);
  - (iii) To direct PMU to implement all project activities according to the regulations of government and ADB policies;
  - (iv) To ensure budget available for implementation of land acquisition in time;
  - (v) To coordinate with relevant agencies to ensure timely redress of complaints or grievances of APs;
  - (vi) To supervise the project's implementation.
- 117. The Quang Binh Provincial Project Management Unit (PMU), on behalf of the project owner is responsible for comprehensive RP implementation and internal monitoring. The main tasks of PMU are.
  - (i) To prepare, update, and monitor RP implementation of subprojects;
  - (ii) To guide LFDC to implement all resettlement activities in compliance with the approved RP; and handle with any mistakes or shortcomings identified by internal monitoring to ensure that the objectives of the RP are met;
  - (iii) To coordinate with LFDC and CPCs, conduct information campaigns and stakeholder consultation in accordance with established project guidelines;
  - To coordinate with relevant agencies to ensure timely: providing compensation, support and rehabilitation measures, and handle with complaints or grievances of APs;
  - (v) To conduct internal resettlement monitoring, establish and maintain resettlement and grievance databases in accordance with procedures and requirements in approved RP and providing regular reports to Quang Binh PPC, DPI and ADB;
  - (vi) To implement prompt corrective actions in response to internal monitoring.

#### B. District level

118. The DPC undertakes comprehensive management on compensation, assistance and resettlement. The DPC is responsible to the PPC to report on progress, and the result of land acquisition. The DPC's primary task are:

- (i) To approve the schedule and monitoring the progress of land acquisition and resettlement implementation in compliance with RP;
- (ii) To establish a District Compensation, Assistance and Resettlement Board (CARB) or LFDC and direct them and relevant district departments to appraise and implement the detailed compensation, assistance and resettlement;
- (iii) To approve and take responsibility on the legal basis, and accuracy of the detailed compensation, assistance and resettlement plans in the local area; To approve cost estimates on implementation of compensation, assistance and resettlement work;
- (iv) To take responsibility for issuing LURC, certificate on land owning right of HHs and individuals who have land, house entirely recovered; to adjust LURC for HHs and individuals who have land, house partially recovered, in accordance with authorization;
- (v) To direct Communal People's Committees and relevant organizations on implementation of various resettlement activities;
- (vi) To review and confirm the RP approved by PPC and ADB;
- (vii) To resolve complaints and grievances of APs

### C. District Compensation, Assistance and Resettlement Board (CARB)

- 119. Members of the CARB include the chairman/deputy chairman of the DPC (to be the head of the CARB), representative of Environmental and Natural Resource Division, Division of Finance, Division of Agriculture and Rural Development, chairman of CPC, affected households, members of farmer union and women union. The main role of the CARB includes:
  - (i) To organize, plan and carry out compensation, assistance and resettlement activities;
  - (ii) To conduct DMS, consultation and information dissemination activities, design and implement income restoration program, coordinate with various stakeholders;
  - (iii) To prepare compensation plan and submit to DPC for approval. Implement compensation, assistance and resettlement alternative; to take responsibility for legal basis applied in compensation, assistance and resettlement policy following approved RP;
  - (iv) To assist in the identification and allocation of land for relocated HHs;
  - (v) To lead and coordinate with the CPC in the timely delivery of compensation payment and other entitlements to AHs; and
  - (vi) To assist in the resolution of grievances.

#### D. District Ethinc Department

- 120. Ethnic minority committees of PPCs will direct EM department of districts and supervise on implementation of EM action plan. Ethnic minority department of districts in combination with PMUs and other agencies is responsible to carry out:
  - (i) All mitigation measures to reduce potential negative impacts of the subproject on EM people;
  - (ii) Programs of information propagation and technical assistance to the EM community;

(iii) Information propagation of HIV/AIDS, women trafficking; Information dissemination on social evils and propaganda on indigenous cultural values and preservation of the values

### E. Commune level

- 121. The CPC will assist the CARB in their resettlement tasks. Specifically, the CPC will be responsible for the following:
  - (i) To cooperate with District level and with local mass organizations at commune level to mobilize people who will be acquired to implement the compensation, assistance and settlement policy according to approved RP;
  - (ii) To cooperate with CARB to present reason of compensation for people with acquired land area; disseminate and disclosure compensation plan to people;
  - (iii) To assign Commune officials to assist the CARB in the updating of the RP and implementation of resettlement activities;
  - (iv) To identify replacement land for Ahs;
  - (v) To sign the Agreement Compensation Forms along with the AHs;
  - (vi) To assist in redressing grievances; and,
  - (vii) To actively participate in all resettlement activities.

### IX. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

122. The implementation schedule for resettlement activities for the subproject is presented in Table 20 including (i) activities that have been completed to prepare the RP; (ii) resettlement implementation activities and, (iii) internal monitoring activities.

Table 20: Resettlement and compensation payment plan

	<u>-                                      </u>
Activities	Time
Approval and disclosure of final draft RP	
Endorse final draft RP by PPC and ADB	5/2017
Disclose the endorsed RP in ADB website and disclose locally to APs	5/2017
and communes	3/2017
Implementation of the approved RP	
Detailed engineering and demarcation of land to be acquired	Quarter II/2017
Conduct public consultation meeting with APs	Quarter II/2017
Conduct IOL and prepare compensation plan (replacement cost survey	Quarter III/2017
if required)	
Consult APs on the compensation plan	Quarter IV/2017
Update the RP based on results of DMS (if required)	Quarter IV/2017
Submit compensation plan to DPC for review and approval	Quarter IV/2017
Disclose approved compensation plan to Aps	Quarter I/2018
Conduct payment of compensation and allowance	Quarter I/2018
Conduct site clearance	Quarter I/2018
Carry out construction	Quarter II/2018
Monitoring	
Conducting monthly monitoring on the implementation of RP with LIC's	Quarter III/2017
support	Quarter III/2017
LIC support for preparation of semi-annual monitoring report to submit	Quarter III/2017

Activities	Time
CPMU and ADB	

#### X. MONITORING AND EVALUATION

123. The implementation of the RP will be monitored regularly to ensure that it is implemented as planned and that mitigating measures designed to address the subproject's adverse impacts are adequate and effective. Towards this end, resettlement monitoring will be done through community monitoring and internal monitoring. External monitoring is not required for the subproject due to category B and uncomplicated subproject.

### A. Community monitoring

- 124. Community-based monitoring (CBM) is a form of community monitoring which is boosted by the demand for information and value of local community. The community –based monitoring contributes to increasing quality of social services or contributes to management of all ecological resources. Within the framework of CBM, members of community affected by a social program or environmental changes will have needs, suggestions and criticism and then their feedback will contribute to the implementation of program and management of the subproject.
- 125. People in the subproject's area are encouraged to participate in monitoring the RP implementation, especially affected people in terms of what they receive as compensation compared what is stated in the RP.

### B. Internal monitoring

- 126. The objectives of internal monitoring is to assess:
  - (i) The compliance with the approved RP;
  - (ii) The availability of resources and the effective use of these resources to implement land acquisition and resettlement activities;
  - (iii) If resettlement agencies are well-functioning during the project implementation process;
  - (iv) If resettlement activities are undertaken in accordance with the implementation schedule described in the RP;
  - (v) To identify problems, if any, and remedial actions.
- 127. Internal monitoring is the responsibility of PMU, the project executing agency. PMU will be responsible for pre-determining the establishment, implementation and activities of each agency in charge of resettlement in province and district. PMU will ensure that information on the resettlement process will be disclosure by compensation, assistance and resettlement board of district. The compensation, assistance and resettlement board of district will submit monthly progress report to PMU. PMU will consolidate all reports from the province into the project implementation monitoring system to be the base for preparing periodical report to submit to ADB.
- 128. PMU will establish an internal monitoring schedule, indicators, sequence and requirement for report of all subprojects that respond to the REMDF requirements as well as those outlined below. Semi-annual internal monitoring reports are submitted to ADB for review and upload on ADB website. The internal monitoring indicators include:
  - (i) Compensation, assistance and resettlement amount paid to affected households in accordance with agreement in resettlement policy framework and RP;
  - (ii) Completion of coordination of land acquisition and compensation, and the time of conducting construction as requirement of resettlement;

- (iii) The consent between sequence and procedure of information dissemination to community in comparison with contents in report; and
- (iv) The consent between procedure of grievance redress and the content of grievance redress in report. The sampling indicators will be periodically monitored.
- (v) Affected person and compensation: number of affected people by type of impact; status of compensation and allowance payment, relocation and other assistance;
- (vi) Status of income restoration activity: number of adversely affected or partially affected persons due to (a) lossing production land and/or (b) relocation; number of affected persons under vulnerable group; relocation status of affected persons; status of income restoration assistance;
- (vii) Information dissemination and consultation: number and scope of community consulation meetings and/or consultations with affected persons; status of affected persons; summary of the need of affected persons, aspiration and major concerns of people in the meetings;
- (viii) Complaint and grievance reddress: summary of recorded grievance; implemention steps for reddressing the grievance; and, any arising issue needs to be managed by authority at district level and provincial level or assisted by ADB;
- (ix) Financial management: the amount of fund allocated for compensation and other activities; the amount compensated for each affected household;
- (x) Resettlement progress: completion of activities in accordance with the schedule plan; the delay and reason for the delay; adjustment of resettlement schedule;
- (xi) Coordination of resettlement activities with contract award for civil works: the status of completion of resettlement activities and date of contract award for civil works:
- (xii) Implementation issues: arising issues, reason and solution for the arising issues.

## **ANNEX I: COMMUNITY MINUTES AND LIST OF PARTICIPANTS**

	CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM
	Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc
	2 2 0 0 00 00 00 000
	Quany Binly ngày 26 tháng 04 năm 2017
	BIÊN BẢN THAM VẤN CỘNG ĐÔNG
DIFÁNIL	Về Chính sách an toàn Tái định cư và Dân tộc thiểu số HẠ TẦNG CƠ BẢN CHO PHÁT TRIỀN TOÀN DIỆN 4 TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ
DŲ AN H	
I. Thời gian, đ	địa điểm và tiểu dự án được tham vấn:
1. Thời gi	ian tham ván: 1 00 Ngay 26 104 12017
2. Địa điể	em tham van Hor huiding My Ban Nhan Dan Xi An Phuy.
3. Tên Tie	ou du an XD tuyen triong du lich het no. TP Dong Hor voi con vung plua Nam Out
II. Thành phầ	êu dự án: XI tuyến đường du lịch hết nó. TP Đồng thời với các vùng phía Nam Suá in tham dự: (đoàn thuyến nói đường Chánh bốt đến bán Thủy)
	n chủ đầu tư:
- Ông/Bà	Nguyễn Viết Vường Chức vụ Cán Bộ Số kế thoạch Đấu Tư
	, Chức vụ
2. Đại diệr	UBND xā:An Chuy
- Ông/Bà	To Dirth - Thanh , Chirc vu Chi tich UBND xã An Huy
- Ông/Bà	Than Thank Liting Chức vụ Phố chủ tich UBNO.
- Ông/Bà	Driving Minh Guan Chirc vu Can bo van hoa - xã ho
- Ông/Bà	To Jan Riving Chirc vu Chir tich Hor Nong Dan
- Ông/Bà	Bui Van Lieu Chicvu Chi tick Not too
- Ông/Bà	Phan Van Phone Chircy Can ho Dia chie
- Ông/Bà/	Nguyễn Thị Thuy Kiếu Chức vụ Phó Chú tích Hồ Phu Mi
3. Đại diện	innom itr van:
- Ông/Bà	Rgo Dric Quan Chirc vu Chuyen gia tư rấn TĐC
- Ông/Bà	Chức vụ
4. Đại diện	những hộ bị ảnh hưởng bởi TDA:
	gười tham dự họp
- Trong đó:	Nam20
(Danh sách	đại biểu tham dự đính kèm)

### III. Nội dung tham vấn

## III.1 Các nội dung phổ biến thông tin:

- Giới thiệu chung về dự án, cung cấp các thông tin về dự án như mục tiêu, địa điểm, quy mô, các thông số kỹ thuật cơ bản của các hạng mục được đầu tư, chủ đầu tư và nhà tài trợ nguồn vốn;
- Phổ biến thông tín về phạm vi, mức độ, loại hình ảnh hưởng đến tài sản của người dân bởi tiểu dư án
- Phổ biến Khung chính sách Tái định cư và phát triển DTTS và các quyền lợi được hưởng;
- Phổ biến quy trình khiếu nại và giải quyết khiếu nại về bồi thường Tái định cư cho các hộ bị ảnh hưởng...;

### III.2. Các nội dung tham vấn cộng đồng:

- Tham vấn về phạm vi ảnh hưởng và các tác động thu hồi đất, các tài sản bị ảnh hưởng của việc thực hiện dư án;
  - Tham vấn về Chính sách bồi thường và quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Tham vấn về nhu cầu hỗ trợ và khả năng tiến hành các biện pháp phục hỗi cuộc sống;
     Đặc biệt chú trọng các hộ ảnh hưởng nặng, hộ phải di dời Tái định cư;
  - Tham vấn các vấn đề về tái định cư, các tác động dự kiến, quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng,
  - Tham vấn về các tác động tích cực, các biện pháp giảm thiểu tối đa các tác động tiêu cực, đến người/cộng đồng bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Thu thập các ý kiến khác liên quan đến công tác bồi thường Tái định cư và Phát triển dân tộc thiểu số...

### VI. Ý kiến thảo luận

### IV.1. Các vấn đề về bồi thường, tái định cư

- Long chi Phan Phank Living - Pho Chu tick UBND xã
An thuy giời thiều lý do cuốc hợp và thanh phần tham dư bao gồm đại diễn chiris quyển đón vi từ vấn đến từ ngắn háng ADB và công đồng người dân thong xã — Lai bươi họp đồng chu Ngô Đức Quân Chuyển gia từ vấn tái định cư giới thưu về các thong tin về Dư an ha táng có bàn cho phát triển tran diễn các trul bai ban các
bac gom das dien chierts grupen don is the van den
ti ngắn hang ADB và công đồng người dân trong xã
- Lai bus hop, dong chi Ngo Die Quan Church
gia til van tai dinh cu giós then ve car thong to ve
Du an ha lang co ban cho phat then town den cac
- Noi dung chính của buổi tham van gồm hai muc
1. Car thing him chung ve du an ta ting or han ele
1. Các thống tin chung về dư án tha tang có bản cho Phát tuến tran diễn bốn tính Bắc Tưng Bố

2 Cac noi dung ve than van công tring bas girm cal van de lien quan den phan is and huring va tak doing cua viet this hier du an car chinh sach ber thuing va quyen loi cua nguos lo anh huang - Dai dien chinh, quyên địa phương và các tiế gia dinh than gia bus than van lang nghe vê cái van ate chung của dư an Mgoài việc giới thiều chung về chỉ an while me then dia dum quy mo, can thing so ky thuất cẻ bàn của các hang muc được đầu từ , chủ đầu the va require too the von the chayer give til van tai dirk CV Não Đức Quân con tinh bay nhưng thong for về pham is anh hing va thung toi dish cu, cae quyen to he gia durch is and huring duck history - Perg this, doing chi Duan cury co timb bay guy turk khin rai va giai quyet klien rai ve bor thuring Tai dinh at the cat his be and luing kết thứ nó dung thủ nhất trinh kay nhưng net ed han ve du an va thing toi dish cu chirli grujen va ngữa dan tham dư cuốc hợp đũ động tính với nói dung chuyên gia thi định củ Ngô thế Quân đã trình We can not dung him quan der than van công đống, bao gen : . Than van ve phan i and huling va tac doing cha vice there him de an + othing chirch saich bis thirty hier bank va quyen let are to tring it and history Than van ve rhu can lio to va tha rang hin bank cac ben phase plux lion cuic song + Than van ve cac van de Tai dich cie va car bien phap giam thin to do can her our der cong doing trong di an Cu the chinh quyên dai diên người dân trong cong động cũng sốt, ủng hệ về hình thúc bởi thường barg him mat do it car ho is ainto hiring (day & dit rong righter ) va car hinh this bor thirting thay the theo chirli sach - Poi voi các van te hó tro phue hói thu nhập cho các hó nghiễm là ainh hưởng nghiêm trong bao gồm hỏ trở giới thiều việc làm, cũng được làn thanh cũng liệ tư

tất cả thành phần tham di cuốc hợp kát diễn cón kết thuế hai nói dụng chính đã trinh bày đư diễn cón dững ống Nguyễn Văn Sau có để xuất ý kiến "Chúng tôi mư mườn bên dư án có những phiếu khảo sát và bảng giá bài thường chiếu khảo sát và bảng giá bài thường	
tat ca thank plan than an auch to l- + 1= con	0
kot the hai noi dung chinh đã Trinh vay, can chen co	7
to S Now S 160 Sil so de xial is keen . "Chung to me	ng
dong ang rejuger vivi au con la fit this	3.6
muon ben du an co mhung phieu khat sai la story grant	1
chinh sach au the to ratio dan	
00 1 1 la that the churing do the dish cu New Put.	
tra to cho well her charges quality for it from	
Quan nei Ben phia du an se co mot don vi neuer com	
độc lào để có được số lương anh hương chính Xac va	
line to and los flutter of hop die tren sy dong	
other car grant attacking and	
chính sach au the tài ngliói dan  Pra lài cho thai trèn chuyên gia tou dunh ai Ngô Put  Quan nói ' ben phía du an se có một đờn vì kiểm đem  đốc lập để có đười số lương cính hirong chính Xác và  bàng áp giá bìn thường phù hộp dựa trên sư đồng  thuân của người dân  Navai sa đơi diện chính chuyển và người dân than	
Ngoại sa, đại diễn chính chuyển và người dân tham gia đều đồng tính với nữi dung trong buổi tham vàu.	
air don ding till is un dung trong hier than van.	
The same of the sa	
III.2. Các vấn đề Dận tộc thiểu số và giới	
Trong stia ban xa, tat ca cac ho gia dinh such	
Trong xtia ban xa tat ca cac hi gia dinh sunh	
song chu là dân tốc kinh, không có liô gia định sinh	
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống chíu là dân tốc kinh, phống có hỗ gia định dất tốc thiếu số Tuy nhûn, chỉ có một vài nhân thâi	
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống chỉ là dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia định dất tốc thiến số Tuy nhữn, chỉ tố một vài nhân bhẩu là người dân tốc và tắt cả các hỗ gia định bị ảnh	
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống chíu là dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia định dân thầu dán tốc thiến số Tuy nhữn chỉ tố một vài nhân thầu là rgười dân tốc và tắt cả các lư gia định là ảnh hưởng bởi dù án tếu là là gia định dân tốc tinh	
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cả các hỗ gia định sinh song chu là dân tốc kinh, sching có hỗ gia định sinh dân tốc thiên số Tuy nhữn, chỉ có một vài nhân thâi là người dân tốc và tắt cả các hồ gia định là ảnh hưởng bởi du án đều là hỗ gia định dân tốc tinh	
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống chíu là dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia định dân bhẩu dân tốc thiên số Tuy vhún, chỉ có một vài nhân bhẩu là người dân tốc và tắt cả các hồ gia định bị ảnh hưởng bởi du án đều là hỗ gia định dân tốc tính	1-11-21
Trong xtia ban xa tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống chu là dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia định dân thầu dán tốc thiểu số Tuy vhún chỉ tố một vài vihân thầu là rgười dân tốc và tắt cả các lư gia định là ảnh hưởng bởi dù án đều là là gia định dân tốc tính	10年代
	の変化が
	でが変かり
	トル里から
	でが強くと
	でが強かり
	トルを
	でが強くし
	でが強かり
	でを強かと
	をかまかり
	をが強くと
	でが強かり
	にかまかり

The state of the s	g và cái hỗ gia định dư liên ti ring hồ việc thực hiện dự án đồng thuậis phưởng án bồi h liên quan đến Tái định
uộc họp các bên thống nhất và kết thúc vào lư	úc 11 h 30 ngày 26tháng. 0 f. năm 2017
uộc họp các bên thống nhất và kết thúc vào li Đại diện cộng đồng	úc Mh30.ngày26tháng0.‡năm 2017 Đại diện chính quyền địa phương
Đại diện cộng đồng	
Đại diện cộng đồng	
Đại diện cộng đồng	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương
Đại diện cộng đồng	
Đại diện cộng đồng  (Lucks  Brain Plan Flonds.  BQL Tiểu dự án	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  No Định Chanh
Đại diện cộng đồng  (Lucks  Brain Plan Flonds.  BQL Tiểu dự án	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  Võ Đình Chanh  Đại diện Tư vấn
Đại diện cộng đồng Lurbs Brấn Van Houb.	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  No Định Chanh
Đại diện cộng đồng  (Lucks  Brain Plan Flonds.  BQL Tiểu dự án	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  Võ Đình Chanh  Đại diện Tư vấn
Đại diện cộng đồng  (Lucks  Brain Plan Honks.  BQL Tiểu dự án	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  Võ Đình Chanh  Đại diện Tư vấn

# DANH SÁCH ĐẠI BIỂU THAM DỰ CUỘC HỘP THAM VẪN CỘNG ĐỒNG DỰ ÁN HẠ TẦNG CƠ BẨN CHO PHÁT TRIỂN TOÀN DIỆN CÁC TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ

Ket no IP Hong this its case ving she Norm Lucing Birth Tên tiểu dự án: XP. huyện chương du lich Come keyen no during hims BOT cten Son They , Ghí chú Giới Dân Địa chỉ Ký tên STT Họ và tên tinh tộc Nam Kirle thank Nam Nam

Đại diện cộng đồng

The gan Hank

Nam

Kinh

Đại diện chính quyền địa phương

Vo Dinh Chanh

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

Quang Birly, ngày & tháng 4 năm 2017

# BIÊN BẢN THAM VẨN CỘNG ĐÒNG

Về Chính sách an toàn Tái định cư và Dân tộc thiểu số DƯ ẢN HA TẢNG CƠ BẢN CHO PHÁT TRIỂN TOÀN DIỆN 4 TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ

DỰ ẢN HẠ TẦNG CƠ BẢN CHO PHÁT TRIÊN TOÀN DIỆN 4 TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ
I. Thời gian, địa điểm và tiểu dự án được tham vấn:
1. Thời gian tham vấn: 14h 00' Ngày 27 104 12017
2. Dia diem tham van: Hoi thường UBNO xã Hải Ninh Quống Ninh
3. Tên Tiểu dự án: Xây dùng Tuyến đường du lịch kết nổi TP Đồng Hới với cá ving II. Thành phần tham dự: phíá Nam Quảng Binh (huyến Bảo Ninh - Hái Ninh)
1. Đại diện chủ đầu tư:
- Ong/Bà Nguyễn Việt Vương Chức vụ Cán bộ Số kế Hoach Đầu tớ
- Ông/Bà Chức vụ
2. Đại diện UBND xã: Hải Nink.
- Ong/Ba Pham Dan Lieu Chức vụ Chú tích UBNO
Church Paules Paules Par Ho
- Ong/Bà Rguyễn tâm Rien Chức vụ Cán bố địa chính
- Ong/Ba fleang Quan le Chức vụ Cán bố văn pháng USND
- Ong/Ba Mguyen this Hai Chirc vu Chu tich Hoi Nong Fan
- Ong/Bà Mai Bhi Lau Chức vụ Phố Chủ kich Hơn Phụ (Vũ
- Ong/Ba Hoang Minh Le Chức vụ Phó bị thư Đảng ủy
- Ong/Ba Rguyen thanh Hai Chức vụ Chủ bils tho Cine chiến birth xã
3. Đại diện nhóm Tư vấn:
- Ong/Bà Mga Duc Quan Chuyen gia tu van Tai dinh cu
- Ông/Bà, Chức vụ
4. Đại diện những hộ bị ảnh hưởng bởi TDA:
- Tổng số người tham dự họp
- Trong đó; Nam
(Danh sách đại biểu tham dự đính kèm)
and death of the second

## III. Nội dung tham vấn

## III.1 Các nội dung phổ biến thông tin:

- Giới thiệu chung về dự án, cung cấp các thông tin về dự án như mục tiêu, địa điểm, quy mô, các thông số kỹ thuật cơ bản của các hạng mục được đầu tư, chủ đầu tư và nhà tài trợ nguồn vốn;
- Phổ biến thông tin về phạm vi, mức độ, loại hình ảnh hưởng đến tài sản của người dân bởi tiểu dư án
- Phổ biến Khung chính sách Tái định cư và phát triển DTTS và các quyền lợi được hưởng;
- Phổ biến quy trình khiếu nại và giải quyết khiếu nại về bồi thường Tái định cư cho các
   hộ bị ảnh hưởng...;

## III.2. Các nội dung tham vấn cộng đồng:

- Tham vấn về phạm vi ảnh hưởng và các tác động thu hồi đất, các tài sản bị ảnh hưởng của việc thực hiện dự án;
  - Tham vấn về Chính sách bồi thường và quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Tham vấn về nhu cầu hỗ trợ và khả năng tiến hành các biện pháp phục hỗi cuộc sống;
     Đặc biệt chú trọng các hộ ảnh hưởng nặng, hộ phải đi dòi Tái định cư;
  - Tham vấn các vấn đề về tái định cư, các tác động dự kiến, quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng,
  - Tham vấn về các tác động tích cực, các biện pháp giảm thiểu tối đa các tác động tiêu cực, đến người/cộng đồng bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Thu thập các ý kiến khác liên quan đến công tác bồi thường Tái định cư và Phát triển dân tộc thiểu số...

### VI. Ý kiến thảo luận

IV.1. Các vấn để về bồi thường, tái định cụ

Pai dien chính quyển và công đồng người dân trong
xã đồng chí:
giài thiểu lý do cuốc họp xã thành shân than de
giới thiếu lý do cuốc hợp và thành phân tham dư Đông chí Ngô Điể Quân - chuyển gia tư vấn tại
durk a gia then no dung cua to the
Gibi thing dung in du au has a - is I
church, quy mô, cal thống to kỷ thuất có bản của các hang như được đầu từ, chu đầu hì và nhà tại từ
hang muc die day 13 clu day be so to to to
nguin ion
Pay là 1 trong 8 trui du an duie dan tre fir
nagal trang their old an an lan to the of 1 00 mm
that trak- phia Nam Quang Birth Ctuyen Bao Minh Mai Minh
Mary Mary Date Mills Mar Hort

Du an nay plus vu phat trien grav thong cung wha kinh te - xa libi trong thu nic, clin trach thein the then chirch la so bet lunch dan ti lu kien wir thangé se thus hier him quen ctin kien dem, giai phony mat have të khung chinh saich : Pua trên khung chinh saich của địa phương và trên có số chính sach hỗ tươ tư phia Ngan lang ADB car his gra dirth to anh huring trong qua tind this him di an se dioc bos thiring và hướng nhưng chính sách xquyên theo khung chính sail and ngan hang do duce usur tinh the Huyet. Doi voi Johnny church sach they the tal ca cac lo gia dinh li anh hưởng bởi du an về đất đại, tai sain va vat frien tuc se dièce bring mile boi thing tong tin mot this du an tuen thai se co mot bou to thương lam vie công thai và due trên sư nhất tư của người dân. Tai định cư hỗ gia định bị anh hương sẽ được lia chon mot trong hai cach ... Tri tai chinh cu whan he to hen mat hi du an và từ di chuyển và định cơ is một vị trí thác . Tai dirth au ce sư kô trẻ từ dư án ban quan by du an va chinh quyen se tao dieu sien bà tri noi 6 mòs do he gia durt de on tinh kinh te. to guy trink their rai san 15 ngay thing law dark sail lie gia dinh de anh hurry se car van de hier quan nhu dien tich bi and hilling, gia, cach their bos Muiong ... người dân có quyển driớc khiểu nai về bos thirting Tou durk cul. Ngodi sa, whing his gia dink to aint buing ughism trong từ di án sẽ nhân được sự hệ trở về phát triển sich le nhu day nghe, đại tạo việc làm, để có the on dush cuck sorg took chirch sach, dan the their so, cury whan diese mic den bu va ho to shu hos theo thing chinh sach Dong Chi Chan Vair Lieu - Chi Lich UBNO xã có chia se Bas cao cae động chi và bà con via số chung to co right whing thing this va chirch sach her quan this

so so so le - ant of the steer	
de an law driving sap to Theo whe is sout so bo the xx	
the gia dinh se died bo thường như chính sach đã quy	
his org tinh se died box thirting whis chinh sach as you	
TO VICE AND CO CUMPANIA MARKET	
OF F C AN U.U. IN THE WORK OF THE DURY BUILDING	
Schai de Viec di lai, phat triên kinh te tung ving du'de	
Schoi de Vic du 101, prias municipalitation	
thuân tiên	
Engo Le người dân thần Tân Đinh có ý kun	
thai và có sử giam sát chống thuận của người dân. Rất mong du an sóm thức hiện	
Rất mong du an som thức liên!	
***************************************	
to all the secondary of the alfali	
111.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiểu số và giới Lương đưa ban xã tắt cả các lữ gia định đưi là	
thong and have been all the	-
is the state of the state of the three sp	33
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	
dais the kinh, không có họ gia định dân tộc thiều sơ sinh sống tại xai	No.
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	San San
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	San Control
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	Salar Salar
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	Salar Salar
day the kinh, ching co his gia durk day the much so	
dais the kind, ching co his gia durk dan toe much so	The state of the s
das tic kinh, chông co hỗ gia durh dan tọc much số Ninh sống tại xa	
dais the kind, ching co his gia durk dan toe much so	
dais the kind, ching co his gia durit dan toc much so	
dais tic kinh, không co hệ gia dunh dan the much so Ninh sống tại xai	
dais tic kinh, không có hộ gia durh dan tọc much số Ninh Sống tại xai	
dais tic kinh, không co hệ gia dunh dan the much so Ninh sống tại xai	
dais tic kinh, không có hộ gia durh dan tọc much số Ninh Sống tại xai	
dân tiế kinh, không có thể gia dịnh dân tọc Mulu số sinh sống tại xai	
dais tic kinh, ching ce hi gra durh dan tic muu so.  sunh Song tai xa	
dân từ kính Không có hộ gia dunh dan tọc Much số Ninh Sống tại xã	
dân từ kinh, Chồng có hệ gia dunh dan từ Mulli số Ninh sống tại xãi	
dân từ kinh, Không có họ gia dinh dan tực much sống tại xai	
dân từ kinh, không có hệ gia dunh dan thi mun số Ninh Sống tại xá	

dân xã diù đồng tinh, in và morg du du sớm tiên cho tiếc đi lài của a người dân đều ủng hỏ nhất để dư án triển khai att ra
Dại diện chính quyền địa phương  Thạm Tùn Tiệu
Đại diện Tư vấn  (Law)  Ng: Đư Quás.

# DANH SÁCH ĐẠI BIỂU THAM DỰ CUỘC HỘP THAM VẪN CỘNG ĐÔNG DỰ ẢN HẠ TẦNG CƠ BẢN CHO PHÁT TRIỂN TOÀN DIỆN CÁC TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ

.... Tinh Quary Birth Xā Hai Ninh .. Huyên ... Quang Nurli Tên tiểu dự án: XP. tuyến chững du lịch kết nói TP Động Hới với các xúng phía Nam Quảng Ghi chú STT Địa chỉ Ký tên Họ và tên tinh Chi tich usni Phan Van Lieu Nam kinh Namey Tain Kien Nam Nam Kerl Nom an Clubry Non Nam W News Le Van Truy Nam Nam une plu whas Hora Miss le Nam Nam Nagagra Their Hai Nam Nguyên Viêt Vidna Nam nt CP 80 Ke Hond Bay To

Đại diện cộng đồng

Up: Elanh Chuyen

Đại diện chính quyền địa phương

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

Quang Birls, ngày 26 ... tháng 04 ... năm 2017

# BIÊN BẢN THAM VẤN CỘNG ĐÔNG

Về Chính sách an toàn Tái định cư và Dân tộc thiểu số DỰ ÁN HẠ TẮNG CƠ BẮN CHO PHÁT TRIỂN TOÀN DIỆN 4 TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ

I. Thời gian, địa điểm và tiểu dự án được tham vấn:
1. Thời gian tham vấn: 14h00, Ngày 26 104 12017
2. Dia điểm tham vận: This trường UBND xã Sòn Phuy Le Chuy - Quang bin
3. Tên Tiểu dự án: XP buyên chương du lịch kết nó. TP Đồng thời với các nùng phủa Nam Brangh
3. Tên Tiểu dự án: XI huyên chương du lịch kết nó. TP Đống thời với các vũng phủa Nam Bưngh II. Thành phần tham dự: (đoạn huyến nói đường Thành BĐT đến Sơn Vhuy)
1. Đại diện chủ đầu tư:
- ông/Bà Nguyễn Việt Vương Chức vụ Cán Bà Số kế thanh Đầu Từ
- Ông/Bà, Chức vụ
2. Đại diện UBND xã:
- Ong/Bà To Dan Duc Chức vụ Chú tích UBNO xã Sốn Thủy
- Ong/Bà Mguyin Jan Thuc , chức vụ Phó Chủ tích UBIND
- Ong/Bà Rguyễn Dan Luất Chức vụ Phó Chủ tich UBM
- Ong/Bà Mguyên Lhi Fhir Chức vụ Phó Chủ tich HPM.
- Ong/Ba Pran Hai Cường Chức vụ Địa chinh mòi trường
- Ong/Ba Agujen Jan Duong Chức vụ Chủ truh Hội Nông Dân
- Ong/Bà Dương Dan Thoại Chức vụ Dan phong USND
3. Đại diện nhóm Tư vấn:
- Ong/Bà Rgo Dik Quan Chuyen gia tư rấn THC
- Ông/Bà
4. Đại diện những hộ bị ảnh hưởng bởi TDA:
- Tổng số người tham dự họp
- Trong đó: Nam
(Danh sách đại biểu tham dự đinh kẻm)

### III. Nội dung tham vấn

### III.1 Các nội dung phổ biến thông tin:

- Giới thiệu chung về dự án, cung cấp các thông tin về dự án như mục tiêu, địa điểm, quy mô, các thông số kỹ thuật cơ bản của các hạng mục được đầu tư, chủ đầu tư và nhà tài trợ nguồn vốn;
- Phổ biến thông tín về phạm vi, mức độ, loại hình ảnh hưởng đến tài sản của người dân bởi tiểu dư án
- Phổ biến Khung chính sách Tái định cư và phát triển DTTS và các quyển lợi được hưởng;
- Phổ biến quy trình khiếu nại và giải quyết khiếu nại về bồi thường Tái định cư cho các hộ bị ảnh hưởng...;

## III.2. Các nội dung tham vấn cộng đồng:

- Tham vấn về phạm vi ảnh hưởng và các tác động thu hồi đất, các tài sản bị ảnh hưởng của việc thực hiện dự án;
  - Tham vấn về Chính sách bồi thường và quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Tham vấn về nhu cầu hỗ trợ và khả năng tiến hành các biện pháp phục hồi cuộc sống;
     Đặc biệt chủ trọng các hộ ảnh hưởng nặng, hộ phải di dời Tái định cư;
  - Tham vấn các vấn đề về tái định cư, các tác động dự kiến, quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng,
  - Tham vấn về các tác động tích cực, các biện pháp giảm thiểu tối đa các tác động tiêu cực, đến người/cộng đồng bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Thu thập các ý kiến khác liên quan đến công tác bồi thường Tái định cư và Phát triển dân tộc thiểu số...

### VI. Ý kiến thảo luận

## IV.1. Các vấn đề về bởi thường, tái định cư

- Dông chi Nguyễn Van Thuc - Phó Chủ tích UBND và Sơn
Thuy gir thin ly do cure hop vi thanh phan tham du chuyên gia từ vấn tài định củ Ngô Đức Quân đại
Chuyên gia từ sắn tái định củ Ngô Đức Quân - đại
dien dear til van aid theen in our thomas for Die
Ha long is boir che phat trên các finh Bac Trung B8.
gem :
. Thing box mute to ainh hing du tion air du an
Gis they ve thung clink with and to do
. Cac van de vo hor Huldra
Van de ve dan toc they so va sid-
thong che Não thic Quan do thức hiện tham van
voi chinh quyền địa phương về các vấn để tái định di

xin y kun của các hỗ dư lưn là ánh hưởng của Tiểu buit hop deu nhất tư và mong muốn dự án sớn thực Ve hinh this hos thing car his curry thing what chon link the box thuring being the mal Por it van de ho to plue hor the whap cho cac ho be and hiding righten thong, car his rung mong much diece his to long this mat Van de ve that sat gia thay the chirt gruyen va các hỗ gia định cũng vhất trí với các biến pháp được Jua sa, tuy nhiên các his gia tinh van ilu tên phương. an his thường bằng tin mặt Tuyên thường thên tại đã xương cấp ngoại khô khán trong vie di lai va giao thirdag trujen duong con gay à when not twong but bam, much lay to anh history đến di lai của người dân trên địa ban và đặc biết là các hệ hai hên đường Mhieu hi gia dinh mong muon du an sim die thus hiện thuy nhiên công tác hỗi thương thể trở cũng cán được xem xet cho hop ly cac his mong muon die his to being then mat cong to the thirting phai cong thai to se than gra oia đại dên các bên tiên gran và là bi ánh lương Bo thirty the cac the gia tinh to auch himse met lais twice this there him they has dies tich huồng bula trinh thực hiện chỉ an phải có cac chinh sach tao die hin thuân là cho người lac đồng tham gia vao việc thực hiện di an và thue day ghat their kinh to ving those there hien viec giam sat chất lường công trinh Chia se tou buor than luan dong chi Thuc Pho Chi tich My Ban Whan Dan xa Str. Thuy ca min " Truce het cam on down the van va tal ca cae doing chi col bac do than di buis hop Tuy do co sat abien cuce than van tai cong dong song mor bus them van

đều xất có ý nghĩa Mãi du diễn tích là ainh hưởng bởi tuyến đường trong dù ain không nhiều nhưng cần bỏ ra người dan đều mong muốn die am sốm thực luin"	
bà ia nguts dan deu mong munit	
III 2 Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiểu số và giới	
III.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiều số và giới Lai fia ban xã tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh Sống đều là người dân tốt kinh, không có hỗ gia định dân tốc thiểu số	
III.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiều số và giới Lai địa ban xa tắt cá các liê gia định sinh Sống đều là người dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia địah dân tốc thiểu số	
111.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiều số và giới Lai địa ban xã tắt cả các liê gia định sinh sống đều là người dân tốc kinh, không có hiế gia định dân tốc thiểu số	
III.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiều số và giới Lai fra ban xã tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh sống thủ là người dân tốc kinh, không có hỗ gia Tinh dân tốc thiểu số	•2
III.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiều số và giới Lai địa ban xã tắt cá các hỗ gia định sinh Sống đầi là người dân tốt kinh, không có hỗ gia Trun dân tốc thiểu số	
III.2. Các vấn đề Dân tộc thiểu số và giới  Lai địa ban xã tắt cả các liê gia định sinh.  Sống đều là người dân tốc kinh, không có hiế gia  định dân tốc thiểu số	We're's

III. Kết luận  Các hộ gia đượch thay  thể phương an bối thườn  Liên quan đến Tái định  Chính quyến địa chí	n di buổi học đềũ nhất g và các chính sáils vơng và các hệ của định	
Cuộc họp các bên thống nhất và kết thúc vào lúc	Lerng và các hỗ gia định tu mong muốn dự din	
Đại diện cộng đồng  Là Drui Fuqu	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương  TICH  Võ Văn Đức	
BQL Tiểu dự án  Mguyến Voạt Vương	Dại diện Tư vấn  Lucian  Mys Due Quas,	- OUANA

Nan Nan	tộc Kinh	a. UBNO	Many	
Nem		C. UBNO	Alvaru/	
	har B	THE PERSON NAMED IN	m	
AL.	kinh	peiusnip	Fuel	
Nam	Kirli	PCT. UBMT	- Dece	
Ni	Ninh	PCT phy Nu	year	
Non	0 0	Dia Chirl, MI	18	
Nan		1	ZAL W	
223			Me	
		All distances	and Aust	
	Kinh	CR Carolle 10.00	3 hint	
DOW	WIM	CO SV IV INCOLVINA		1
		/		
	1			
	-			
			/	
1				
		Đại diện chi	inh quyền địa ph	urong
1		COTTON AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY		
	33	Non kinh Nom kinh Nom kinh Nom kinh Nom kinh Nom kinh	Non kinh Vêhony wano Nom kinh Tong than ban Nam kinh at Nony olan Nam kinh CB Số kế Hoạis than Nam kinh CB Số kế Hoạis than  g đồng Đại diện chi	Nam kinh Vihony war And Abut Nam kinh Indig Thom Nige Xi All But Nam kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Man kinh CB Số kế Hoạis thuế Mund Mund Mund Mund Mund Mund Mund Mund

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

Quary Birls , ngày 28 tháng .. 04 ... năm 2017

# BIÊN BẢN THAM VẨN CỘNG ĐÔNG

Về Chính sách an toàn Tái đị DỰ ẢN HẠ TẮNG CƠ BẪN CHO PHÁT TRII	
I. Thời gian, địa điểm và tiểu dự án được tham	vấn:
1. Thời gian tham vấn: 8 R. 00 Ngày	281 041 2017 _
2. Địa điểm tham vấn: Hơi thường UBN	P. xa. Bao North - Quang North- Quang Bird
3. Tên Tiểu dự án: XP. được đường dụ bộ	l tết nữi TP Đông thời với các vưng phía Naw Suáng Tuyến Bảo Ninh - Mái Ninh)
II. Thành phần tham dự:	thuyến Báo Ninh - Mái Ninh) 1'
1. Đại diện chủ đầu tư:	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR
- Ong/Ba Nguyễn Việt Nương	Chức vụ Cán bố Số kế Hoach Đầu Từ
	Chức vụ
2. Đại diện UBND xã: Bắc Ninh	
- Ong/Ba Phan Quang Trung	Chức vụ. Phố Chủ tich UBND xã
- Ong/Bà To Thank Son	Chức vụ CB Dia chính
- Ong/Bà Trấn Thi Vai Hang	
- Ong/Bà Lai Thi Hồng Van	
- Ông/Bà Nguyễn Thanh Burth	Chức vụ CT Hội Nhậng Dân
- Ông/Bả	Chức vụ
- Ông/Bà	
3. Đại diện nhóm Tư vấn:	
- Ong/Ba Ngo thic Quan	Chức vụ. Chuyển gia bị vấn THC
- Ông/Bà	Chức vụ
4. Đại diện những hộ bị ảnh hưởng bởi TDA	A:
- Tổng số người tham dự họp	
- Trong đó: Nam	
(Danh sách đại biểu tham dự đính kèm)	The type tried so
	The state of the s

## III. Nội dung tham vấn

## III.1 Các nội dung phổ biến thông tin:

- Giới thiệu chung về dự án, cung cấp các thông tin về dự án như mục tiêu, địa điểm, quy mô, các thông số kỹ thuật cơ bản của các hạng mục được đầu tư, chủ đầu tư và nhà tài trợ nguồn vốn;
- Phổ biến thông tin về phạm vi, mức độ, loại hình ảnh hưởng đến tài sản của người dân bởi tiểu dư án
- Phổ biến Khung chính sách Tái định cư và phát triển DTTS và các quyền lợi được hưởng;
- Phổ biến quy trình khiếu nại và giải quyết khiếu nại về bồi thường Tái định cư cho các hộ bị ảnh hưởng...;

### III.2. Các nội dung tham vấn cộng đồng:

- Tham vấn về phạm vi ảnh hưởng và các tác động thu hồi đất, các tài sản bị ảnh hưởng của việc thực hiện dự án;
  - Tham vấn về Chính sách bồi thường và quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Tham vấn về nhu cầu hỗ trợ và khả năng tiến hành các biện pháp phục hồi cuộc sống;
     Đặc biệt chủ trọng các hộ ảnh hưởng nặng, hộ phải di dời Tái định cư;
  - Tham vấn các vấn đề về tái định cư, các tác động dự kiến, quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng,
  - Tham vấn về các tác động tích cực, các biện pháp giảm thiểu tối đa các tác động tiêu cực, đến người/cộng đồng bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Thu thập các ý kiến khác liên quan đến công tác bồi thường Tái định cư và Phát triển dân tộc thiểu số...

### VI. Ý kiến thảo luận

### IV.1. Các vấn đề về bởi thường, tái định cư

Ninh gits' thun by do cue hep in thanh phan thous
du
ông Ngô Đức Quản Chuyển gia từ vấn ku định cư giế thiển và một số nổi dụng của buổi thois luân
(a) 1/2 change to add one one of all of the
chung mu tien , dia them, gruy mò, các thống số thý thuất ước bán của các hang mu thụ th chủ đầu tư và nhà nhà thì tư và nhà
Di an lia tong at ban phat then town dien 4 tinh. Box Trung Bo ten tien di an Xay china him
Box Trung Bo ten tien du an Xoy ching hujen chiong du lich tet noi TP Dong the voi car ving plus Nam Quan

Birls (tuyin Bao Ninh - Kai Ninh) Pong chi Ngo Duc Quan da thực luên tham văn với đại diễn chính quyều địa phương xã đại diễn người dân trong xà về các vất để tài định cư, xin y biến của cac lie le anh huiling cua Tim du du Thing bar mic do and hiring die kien cua di au Giri thin we khung church soich wa Tien du au , Cac van te ve bos thirding + Van de ve dan toc their so va gior Ve hirl thic box thing cac ho thong what chon link their hor thirty boing hen mat Van to is that sat gia thay the chish grujen in các hi gia định cũng nhất từ Với các biến pháp được nên sa try nhiên tak his gia dinh van un tên pluiông an boi thuing bang tien mat Tai durk ou nhưng to gia dinh bi anti kuống nghiên trong sẽ đườc liế trở từ du an hoặc từ tại at va nhân bão thường tiên một từ dù án. Ngoài là, sẽ có nhưng chường trinh hỗ tưở về đạo tạc , nghế, - nham giup ho gia dinh le anh helding nghim trong som on dirth in short then sinh he Mluing his gia dinh thuốc đối tường iều tiên như he righted, gia stinh church sach, he dist than, se duce building mile he to theo quy dirlicua du an Jeong quá tunh du air ti rao thic hier, ban quan ly die an se bour che toi da anh huing den ho dan và các vấn để liên quan đến môn trường Doi dien church quyen, đóng chí Pham Quang hung cé chia se " Du an hyen duong Bao Ninh Hai Winh qua dia ban xã theo ith tinh so lo the không co and huring den dat dai, tou sain va vat hien fenc cua he gota direk. Tuy whier, buyen othering as anh luing not chut den dien tich dat rung thuic si quan ly cua Ban quan ly ring thong his It trong the phân dân tích đất anh hường to hiện nay đã troc chuyển đối sang đất năng nghiệp. Con nhưng vấn để lien quan den boi thirting va quijen les se this

				100000000000000000000000000000000000000	
0 0.	r 0-'n	00	F. 0 .10-	-0	
hien nhu	trong chinh	sach guy	dinh New	a.dung	
tien du an	trien deliai se	Mrucin 10	intuy whien	can chu.	
y den nhan	g vấu để về m luận , đây là	ion trucing.	Mong Kang	idil an se	
som thuc	him, đây là	mod thong	tio tot gi	up ngut	
dais trong	à có đều kiến	phát trên	hirls to	xa ho	
va du lid	â	1			
	190				
		***************************************			
	***************************************				
	***************************************				
***************************************					
III.2. Các vấn đề D	Dân tộc thiểu số và giớ	i /	2 6		
Jsong.	dia ban xã,	tat ca cac	Si gia din	h deu la	
dân tôc k	địa bản xã , inh , không có	his gia	dink dan	too thien	
so such sox	ng dai xa			***************************************	
	1				
***************************************					
				***************************************	
					O.D.
					3
					1
				***************************************	
					90
					7
			*****************		
			***************************************		
		***************		***************************************	

P	
	Hi. Kết luận  Poi diễn chính quyển và hỗ gia định đều ủng hỗ và mong muốn dù án sốm thực hên tao điều hữn phát  triển kinh tế xã hỗi tai xã  Chính quyển và người dẫn sẽ cổ gắng và tạo điều  kiến hỗ từ khi diệ an đi vào thực hồn
	fron ho tid this Lie on to van thuc han
	ALCEN PAR DA CAL COL LA CALLACTE AND
	***************************************
	Cuộc họp các bên thống nhất và kết thúc vào lúc
	Đại diện cộng đồng Đại diện chính quyền địa phương
	Chan Ngọc Nam
	Tham Quang Trung
	BQL Tiểu dự án Đại diện Tư vấn
	Unne Clause My Dusin.
	Nyuyen Vier Voorg Ngo And Quais.

STT	Họ và tên	GIOI	Dan	Let No. TPBorg t	Ký tên	Ghi chú
1	Plan Aug T	tinh	tộc	001 102 to 1 1000	Owner care	/
2	Pham Quang Tung Namien Van Lac	Nam	cure	Phó Chủ tiel URA	2 VOIDO DO	
3	Phan Ngo Nam	Nan	nt	Thon G Trung	Mark	
4	Paing Dirl TV	Non	nt	GP Ban QL Riting Th	)	
5	Ta Thank Son	Nam	nt	Porg Hick Dia Chin		
6	Trầu Thi Hải Hàng	Contragal .	nt	CT Not Than Ka	Hăncy	
Ŧ	lai Thi Hong Law		nt	CT Her Phy Mi	2	
8	Organier Thank Birt		nt	CT Ki Ning Dan	pigh 1	
-	Nguyên Việt Vương	Nam	nt	CB St Kettensh Dan Tu	Mul	
			1			
			/			
		. /				
		/				
		/				
		_				
						10.11

# CỘNG HÒA XÃ HỘI CHỦ NGHĨA VIỆT NAM Độc lập – Tự do – Hạnh phúc

Quang Birth ngày 27 tháng 04 năm 2017

## BIÊN BẢN THAM VẨN CỘNG ĐÔNG

Về Chính sách an toàn Tái định cư và Dân tộc thiểu số DỰ ẨN HẠ TẦNG CƠ BẨN CHO PHÁT TRIÊN TOÀN DIỆN 4 TỈNH BẮC TRUNG BỘ ————————————————————————————————————
I. Thời gian, địa điểm và tiểu dự án được tham vấn:
1. Thời gian tham vấn: 8600 Ngay 27/04/2017
2. Dia diem tham van: His truising LIBND xã Ngư Thuy Bắc LE Thủy Đương Kin
3. Tên Tiểu dự án: XP tuyến đường dụ lich Kết nơi TP Động Hộ với các vùng phia Nam Quống Bin
3. Tên Tiểu dự án XP tuyến đường du lịch Nết nói IP Đồng Hồ với các sưng phia Nam Quảng Bin II. Thành phần tham dự: (đoan tuyến đường chánh Bối đi hiển Ngư Thuy Bắc)
1. Đại diện chủ đầu tư:
- Ong/Bà Nguyễn Việt Vương Chức vụ Cán bố Số kế hoạch Đấu tư
- Ông/Bà
2. Đại diện UBND xã: Ngư Thuy Bắt
- Ong/Ba Fran Duang Co. Chức vụ Phố Chú tích USND
- Ong/Ba Trán Công Minh Chức vụ Ch Địa Chính
- Ong/Bà Entin Even Marle Chức vụ Chủ tich MIKan Xã
- Ong/Bà Trấn Thuy lượn, Chức vụ Chía tích Hồi PNV.
- Ong/Bà Trân Quang Ruyen, Chức vụ Chủ tich thời Norg Hàn
- Ong/Bà Trấn Tiến Bon Chức vụ Trường thôn Tân Phoran
- Ong/Bà Mộc Quang Quang Chức vụ Thương thôn Tân kai
3. Đại diện nhóm Tư vấn:
- Ong/Bà Dego Duc Duan Chức vụ Chuyển gia từ vấn Tớc
- Ông/Bà Chức vụ
4. Đại diện những hộ bị ảnh hưởng bởi TDA:
- Tổng số người tham dự họp Đ.J người
- Trong đó: Nam
(Danh sách đại biểu tham dự đính kèm)

## III. Nội dung tham vấn

# III.1 Các nội dung phổ biến thông tín:

- Giới thiệu chung về dự án, cung cấp các thông tin về dự án như mục tiêu, địa điểm, quy mô, các thông số kỹ thuật cơ bản của các hạng mục được đầu tư, chủ đầu tư và nhà tài trợ nguồn vốn;
- Phổ biến thông tin về phạm vi, mức độ, loại hình ảnh hưởng đến tài sản của người dân bởi tiểu dư án
- Phổ biến Khung chính sách Tái định cư và phát triển DTTS và các quyền lợi được hưởng;
- Phổ biến quy trình khiếu nại và giải quyết khiếu nại về bồi thường Tái định cư cho các hộ bị ảnh hưởng...;

#### III.2. Các nội dung tham vấn cộng đồng:

- Tham vấn về phạm vi ảnh hưởng và các tác động thu hồi đất, các tải sản bị ảnh hưởng của việc thực hiện dự án;
  - Tham vấn về Chính sách bồi thường và quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Tham vấn về nhu cầu hỗ trợ và khả năng tiến hành các biện pháp phục hồi cuộc sống;
     Đặc biệt chú trọng các hộ ảnh hưởng nặng, hộ phải di dời Tái định cư;
  - Tham vấn các vấn đề về tái định cư, các tác động dự kiến, quyền lợi của người bị ảnh hưởng,
  - Tham vấn về các tác động tích cực, các biện pháp giảm thiểu tối đa các tác động tiêu cực, đến người/cộng đồng bị ảnh hưởng;
  - Thu thập các ý kiến khác liên quan đến công tác bồi thường Tái định cư và Phát triển dân tộc thiểu số...

#### VI. Ý kiến thảo luận

## IV.1. Các vấn đề về bồi thường, tái định cư

The state of the s
Pong chi Tran Quang Ca Pho Chi tich UBND xã Mgi Thủy
Boe gió thiểu lý do cuốc họp và thành phân tham die
Dai dien doan tu van tou dinh cu ting chi
Mga Die Quan có thông qua các nón dung than van
tai bur for kan gon
Chuyên gia từ vấu tài định củ Ngô Đức Quốc
to thus his than rain it chirals quijen that philing
và ho gia dirih tham gia ve thông tin chung của
du an shu mue tien dia chem and não
thomas on the Hungal cure con the and the
chú đầu lư và nhà tài tươ ngườn với Phố biến thống tin về phone vi ainh hưởng và
Phi ben there to it is all less -
many was priced in with with with with

Klung to chali ai và các quyều lời chira hương - Các gry thirts their nai, giai quijet their nai we bor thirting tai tinh as cho car ho li anh hiring Chirth guyên dia phương và các ho gia dinh than gia bus hop the what the mong musin du an som Huic hien trong chi Tran Quang Ca - Pho chu tich UBND xã chase Di an brice dan khar sat hugen diting BOT khong lun quan qua ten lie qua tinh ve dat dai va tai san chi, có một phân đất đại anh luing đến diễn tích rùng do ban quan ly rung quan ly do vay cung thông to go qua phic tap new whi do on their thai Dai dien người dân tương thôn : ông Trần Tun Bon (thân kin Hài) nơi to ratio ban quan ly du an va cae co quan, chinh quyên mô rông buyên đường cân ngắn đườc đóng nước về phia Bac, gain then Tain Thuran, co the lam cong, trong. de rgan nice không tran vào thôn Mong rằng trong qua turb lan die an Ean chu y lon den van de thing li mos triding và car vais de lien quan den den bu (neu co) Por visi van de da duse new la trong busi those luan, ding che Não Due Quain cung đã chia se them và nhan month rice this hier ou an se co going that plue to đa tranh để loi hậu quá anh hưởng đến cuốc sông của người dân trong xã, Các vấn để về môi trường ô nhưm, đều chiếc chú trong để người dân d die hin tet what on dinh cuce song vot phat trien such be Bên canh đó, thi di an tuên thai thi sẽ có bay giai phong mat boing , he se town viec coing that let hig its clint quijen in ngiver dan se co bu the so hing rung whil mile gir bor thing the hop the mung his to anh luing Do vis whing the is and hiring can tai dish as the do an cong se ha ted home he gra dinh to tai dinh as và nhân mile hỗ thể bằng tiên mặt San thi có thường bar và danh sail hô bi anh

phi hep to to to the	**
Thung his gia dinh thuis dies in hen gia dinh chinh sails, phu ni don than, người tan tát, sẽ	
chirle salle, plu ni don than, nguo tan tat. se	
dich sally, plu no don show, the klung chirts	**
	4.5
Can be và người đầu đều rung hệ và sẽ hệ tro trong	**
quá turb de an di vão thức hiện Mong sáng dư an	**
se son tien thai	**
DC 340.15 NOT X / PARTY CO.	
	25
	170
	**
dan tốc kinh , không có hỗ gia định dân tốc thiếu số sinh sống tại xã	
sum sury and some	
	222
***************************************	100
······································	
	***
	***

	***************************************
Các hỗ gia chinh than hình với phương án bối thu dất và tại sản là anh là anh là du buổi tham iấn đều rùng án Truyền đượng tranh Bột ở ảnh hưởng đến đất và toù s	hô trèc thực hiện chỉ tí biển Ngư Thủy Bay lehông ản của hỗ giữ định tương lất sư thuận lới
Cuộc họp các bên thống nhất và kết thúc vào lúc	M."
Đại diện cộng đồng	Đại diện chính quyền địa phương
The Son	Prân Quang Cả
BQL Tiểu dự án	Đại diện Tư vấn
Mayin vier wang	Claux,
Nguyin Vizir Way	Mys Du Quay.

Xã Tên	tiểu dự a	in: XD. buyen. c	icHuy	en Lick	lê Thuy hết nó TP thốy M ển nói chững trobe t	Tinh Quane	Birth
STT	Н	ọ và tên	Giới tính	Dân tộc	en noi chương tương Địa chỉ	Ký tên	Ghi chú
1	Tran	Quang Ga	Nam	Kirls	Pluó CT UBND	1.00	
2	Tran	Cong Ninh		kinh	4.1	total	
3	Tran	//	Nam	kirl		Have	
4	Tain	Thuy kim	Nac	Kinh	CT Hos Phu Nu	Alleg	
5		Quang Quije		kirls		Queny	
6	1000	Tien Bon	Non	Kinh	Tan Huran-NT &	16 m	
8	Ngo.	Evang Quar	y Nam	tinh	4 F A	W 1/ 1	
8	Nguy	ên Việt Vươn	1 Nam	wt	CB So ke Heart fait	mul	
9	Ngui	in Luang Thuy	Nom	ut	A Ban Ol Rung Nami	SB STUD	
	0 1	0 0			,		
-					/		
-					/		
-					/		
-				/			
+				-	-		
-		723		1			
-			1				
			1				
			1	197			
1	1 54		/				
		Đại diện cộ	na đồna		Dai diễn chi	inh quyền địa ph	
		and the second	1000 Carlo 100		Dại diện chi	o chủ TICH	rong
		111	tiin &	-	- 8		

### ANNEX II: SURVEY QUESTIONAIRE FOR AFFECTED HOUSEHOLDS

#### SURVEY AND INVENTORY OF LOSSES QUESTIONAIRES (IOL)

Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth in North Central Provinces

Code of questionnaire (should not be recorded by surveyor):/; Date://2016
A-BACKGROUND INFORMATION
1. Name of householder:Age Gender: [ ] (Male=1; Female =2)
a) Ethnicity: [ ] (1=Kinh; 2= Tay; 3=Thai; 4=Dao; 5= Nung; 6=; 7= Muong; 8=H'Mong;
9=Tho; 10=other)
b) Education level: [ ] (0= Illiterate, not attend school; 1=not graduate primary school;
2=graduate primary school; 3= not graduate secondary school; 4= graduate secondary
school; 5= not graduate high school; 6= graduate high school; 7= Intermediate
college/college; 8=university and post graduate university; 8=other)
c) Main occupation: [ ] (1=cultivation; 2=livestock; 3=business; 4=retirement; 5=worker in
factory; 6=the State's official; 7= employees; 8= handicraft; 9=
unemployed;10=housekeeper; 11=other)
d) Subsidiary occupation:[ ] (1=cultivation; 2=livestock; 3=business; 4=retirement;
5=working in factory; 6=the State's official; 7= employees; 8= handicraft;
9=unemployed;10=housekeeper; 11=other)
2. Address: Village:Commune:DistrictProvince
3. Vulnerable groups: [ ] (Single women headed HH with dependent person =1; severely
affected ethnic minority household =2; HH with disable person =3; Poor HH =4; HH with single
elderly =5; HH under preferential policy =6).
4. Number of persons in HH sharing living condition (living and eating activities) [ ]; Male [ ]
Female [ ]
5. Number of persons under the age of 15 years old [ ]; Over the age of 15 years old [ ]
6. Number of persons under ethnicity of: Kinh [ ] Tay [ ] Thai [ ] Dao [ ] Muong [ ]
Others

### **B. INVENTORY OF LOSSES**

## 7. Acquired land area and legal status of the acquired land area

Type of land		Affected	land area	Status of Land use right	Legal status of the land plot
1=Residential land 2=Garden land 3=Annual crop land 4=Perennial crop land 5=Aquaculture land 6=Non – agriculture land for business 7=Production forest land 8=Protection forest land 9=Other land	Total land area being used by HH (m²)	Total permanent ly affected land area (m²)	Total temporaril y affected land area (m²)	1=Owner of land 2= Tenant	1=with LURC 2=without LURC 3=rent land of the State 4=rent private land
Total					
land 8=Protection forest land		(m²)	(m²)		-

#### 8. Affected house

Type of houses		Impac	t level	Legal status
1. Villa 2. One floor house, constructed by brick, tile roof and metal sheet roof covering 3. One floor house with reinforced concrete structure, flat roof 4. Two floors house or more 5. Stilts house with wooden wall and floor 6. Temporary house 7. House combining with business shop 8. Business shop outside house	Total floor area (m²)	Affected floor area (m²)	(partially affected =1; entirely affected=2)	1=with LURC 2=without LURC 3= constructed on agriculture land 4= renting house
Total				

**Remarks**: HHs may have more than one house affected by the project so it needs to fully fill information on the affected houses.

9. <b>Doe</b>	s vour household ow	n other land/house	located in the pro	oject commune/ward?
---------------	---------------------	--------------------	--------------------	---------------------

1. Yes, area:.....m<sup>2</sup>; 2. No

## 10. Works, structures and tombs on affected land

Works/structures	Type of works	Unit	Quantity	Remarks
Separate kitchen outside main house	Temporary     Stable	m²		
Separate store outside main house	Temporary     Stable	m <sup>2</sup>		
3. Separate toilet outside main house	<ol> <li>Temporary</li> <li>Stable</li> </ol>	m <sup>2</sup>		
4. Separate bathroom outside main house	<ol> <li>Temporary</li> <li>Stable</li> </ol>	m²		
5. Abat-vent, scaly roof covering		m²		
6. Animal shed (Cattle, pigs, goats) / poultry (chicken, duck, goose)	Temporary     Stable	m²		
7. Electric meter and estimated wire	Electric meter	Piece		
from the meter to house	Wire	m		
8. Water meter and estimated water	Water meter	Piece		
pipe from the meter to house	Pipe	m		
9. Stable telephone		Piece		
10. Fence	<ol> <li>Brick wall, stone wall</li> <li>Iron wall or wooden wall</li> <li>Bush</li> </ol>	M		
11. Wall	Built wall     Iron     Wood/Bamboo	m²		
12. Earth tomb		Piece		
13. Sarcophagus		Piece		
14. Well	Drilling     Excavation	Piece		
15. Water tank	Brick/concrete     Inox     Plastic	Piece		
16. Yard (concrete or brick yard is taken into account only)		m²		
17. Fish pond		m²		
18. Others (name of works and affected area)				

# 11. Types of affected trees and crops

Types of affected trees and crops  Types of tree/crop or agricultural product		Unit	Quantity	Remarks
a)	Fruit tree (main tree)	Tree		
1)				
2)				
3)				
4)				
5)				
6)				
b)	Timber (main tree)	Tree		
1)				
2)				
3)				
4)				
5)				
6)				
c)	Agricultural tree ()	tree		
1)	Agricultural tree ()	1166		
2)				
3)				
4)				
5)				
6)				
d)	Crop (main crop)	m²		
1)				
2)				
3)				
4)				
5)				
6)				
e) orodu	Aquaculture (by each main	m²		
			+	
C	Other (specify)			

## D. SELECTION OF COMPENSATION OPTION

For households lost agricultural land		
a) Option of land by land (if land fund is ava	ailable in commune) with the same	type of land
and equivalent area/nature of land	[]	
b) Cash	[]	
c) Not yet decided	[]	
For households lost residential land and relo	cated	
a) Receive compensation in cash and self-re	elocate to new place	[]
b) Relocate to the resettlement area of the p	project or area arranged by locality	[]
c) Build new house on the remaining land	area (if the remaining land area is	suitable for
planning of residential land)		[]
d) Not yet decided		[]
Option of restoring livelihood and income (for	or households lost 10% of their a	agricultural
landholding or affected business and service	r)	
<ul> <li>a) Continue to do the current job</li> </ul>	[]	
b) Continue to do the current job combining	with new job [ ]	
c) Change into new job	[]	

Surveyor

Representative of household

#### **ANNEX III: INVENTORY FORM OF PUBLIC STRUCTURES**

#### INVENTORY FORM FOR AFFECTED PUBLIC LAND AND STRUCTURES

Basic Infrastructure for Inclusive Growth in four North Central Provinces

		District:Provinc	:e:
(vi)	Land:		
No.	Name of commune	Type of acquired land	Area (m²)
		Agricultural land	
		Traffic and irrigation land	

manio di dominiano	i y po oi aoquiroa iarra	/ 11 σα (111 /
	Agricultural land	
	Traffic and irrigation land	
	Religious land	
	Pond, river and stream land	
	Land for doing business and	
	service	
	Forest land	
	Other land (specify)	
		Agricultural land Traffic and irrigation land Religious land Pond, river and stream land Land for doing business and service Forest land

### 2. Affected public asset and works

No.	Name of commune	Type of acquired land	Area (m²)
		Electric station	
		Electric tower	
		Electrical cable	
		Gate	
		Irrigation ditch	
		Drainage system	
		Communication cable	
		Market	
		Office	
		School	
		Health care center	
		Business/service shop	
		Other (specify)	

Surveyor

Representative of Agency/organization